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City Commission 
City of Springfield 
76 East High Street, 4th Floor 
Springfield, Ohio  45502 
 
 
We have reviewed the Independent Auditor’s Report of the City of Springfield, Clark County, 
prepared by Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co., for the audit period January 1, 2017 through 
December 31, 2017.  Based upon this review, we have accepted these reports in lieu of the audit 
required by Section 117.11, Revised Code.  The Auditor of State did not audit the accompanying 
financial statements and, accordingly, we are unable to express, and do not express an opinion on 
them.  
 
Our review was made in reference to the applicable sections of legislative criteria, as reflected by 
the Ohio Constitution, and the Revised Code, policies, procedures and guidelines of the Auditor 
of State, regulations and grant requirements.  The City of Springfield is responsible for 
compliance with these laws and regulations. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dave Yost 
Auditor of State 
 
August 15, 2018  
 
 
 
 
 
 

rakelly
Yost_signature



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial  
 Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...............................1 – 2 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;  
 Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of  
 Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance ...........................................3 – 4 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ..................................................................................  5 - 6 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .................................................................... 7

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ..........................................................................................8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank. 



P. 937.399.2000   |   F. 937.399.5433   |   cshco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
 FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
 BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
 ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City Commission 
City of Springfield 
76 East High Street 
Springfield, Ohio 45502 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Springfield, Ohio (the “City”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards.



Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

  Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co.
Springfield, Ohio  
June 29, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR 
 EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
 OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
 OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

City Commission 
City of Springfield 
76 East High Street 
Springfield, Ohio 45502 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited City of Springfield, Ohio’s (the “City”) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect3 
on each of the City’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. The City’s major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule 
of findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City's major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended December 31, 2017. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. 



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated June 29, 2018, which contained 
unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming 
opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

  Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co. 
Springfield, Ohio  
June 29, 2018



Pass
Through Federal Passed

Entity CFDA Through to
Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Direct

Economic Development Cluster:
Economic Adjustment Assistance (Revolving Loans) (1) 11.307 $ -                   820,548

Total U.S. Department of Commerce -                   820,548

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE
Passed through Ohio Air National Guard

National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Projects - W91364-11-2-2102 N/A (2) 12.401 -                   10,570
National Guard Military Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Projects - W91364-15-2102 N/A (2) 12.401 - 81,617

Total U.S. Department of Defense - 92,187

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster:
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants B-15-MC-39-0019 (1) 14.218 - 138,207
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants B-16-MC-39-0019 (1) 14.218 - 1,555,183
Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants B-17-MC-39-0019 (1) 14.218 - 163,738

Total Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 106,509 1,857,128

Home Investment Partnerships Program
Home Investment Partnerships Program (1) 14.239 - 409,942
Home Investment Partnerships Program M-15-MC-39-0218 (1) 14.239 - 115,568
Home Investment Partnerships Program M-16-MC-39-0218 (1) 14.239 - 115,543

Total Home Investment Partnerships Program 71,188 641,053

Emergency Solutions Grant Program
Emergency Shelter Grant Program E-16-MC-39-0019 (1) 14.231 - 99,648
Emergency Shelter Grant Program E-17-MC-39-0019 (1) 14.231 - 23,990

Total Emergency Solutions Grant Program 123,637 123,638

Shelter Plus Care:
2015 Continuum of Care (SPC-1) (1) 14.238 - 61,959
2015 Continuum of Care (SPC-3) (1) 14.238 - 34,726
2015 Continuum of Care (SPC-2) (1) 14.238 - 22,024
2016 Continuum of Care (SPC-1) (1) 14.238 - 11,637
2016 Continuum of Care (SPC-3) (1) 14.238 - 5,904

Total Shelter Plus Care 124,990 136,250

Neighborhood Stabilization Program:
Neighborhood Stabilization Program - Recovery Act Funded (1) 14.256 - 52,416
Neighborhood Stabilization Program (1) 14.256 - 32,586

Total Neighborhood Stabilization Program - 85,002

Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing:
Lead-Based Paint Hazard Control in Privately-Owned Housing - Loans (1) 14.900 - 2,723,646

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 426,324 5,566,717

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct

Equitable Sharing Program (Federally Forfeited Property Sharing) (1) 16.922 - 28,049
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program (1) 16.738 - 21,306
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program (1) 16.607 - 11,896

Total U.S. Department of Justice 21,306 61,251

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Direct - Federal Aviation Administration

Airport Improvement Program:
Airport Improvement Program #3-39-0072-024-2016 (1) 20.106 - 132,030
Airport Improvement Program #3-39-0072-025-2017 (1) 20.106 - 231,300

Total Airport Improvement Program - 363,330

(continued)

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CLARK COUNTY

Program / Cluster Title
Pass Through Grantor
FEDERAL GRANTOR



Pass
Through Federal Passed

Entity CFDA Through to
Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CLARK COUNTY

Program / Cluster Title
Pass Through Grantor
FEDERAL GRANTOR

Direct - Federal Transit Administration
Federal Transit Cluster:

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (1) 20.507 -                   1,367,417

Passed through Ohio Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:

Highway Planning and Construction:
CLA - Little Miami Trail Extension PID #82314 (2) 20.205 -                   393,499
CLA - Veteran's Bridge PID #88484 (2) 20.205 -                   94,617
CLA - Villa Road Widening PID #89421 (2) 20.205 -                   924,656
CLA - Middle Urbana Road PID #94768 (2) 20.205 -                   56,480
CLA - Burnett Rd Reconstruction PID #94795 (2) 20.205 -                   398,954
CLA - East Street Reconstruction PID #94806 (2) 20.205 -                   42,960
CLA - Belmont Ave Reconstruction PID #94814 (2) 20.205 -                   182,321
CLA - Lowry Bridge PID #96375 (2) 20.205 -                   337,775
CLA - Bechtle Signals PID #98859 (2) 20.205 -                   34,204
CLA - N Murray / Mt Vernon PID #99555 (2) 20.205 -                   2,174
CLA - Bechtle - 0.57 PID #99563 (2) 20.205 -                   92,947
CLA - 40 - 16.82 PID #103791 (2) 20.205 -                   34,472

Total Highway Planning and Construction -                   2,595,059

Passed through Ohio Department of Public Safety
Highway Safety Cluster:

Community Highway Safety Program #STEP-2017-12-00-00-00546-00 N/A (2) 20.600 - 5,955
State and Community Highway Safety Program

#STEP-2018-Springfield Police Dept.-00057 N/A (2) 20.600 - 672
National Priority Safety Program #IDEP-2017-12-00-00-00396-00 N/A (2) 20.616 - 4,165

Total Highway Safety Cluster -                   10,792

Repeat Offenders for Driving While Intoxicated (DWI) Program 
#IDEP-2018-Springfield Police Dept.-00057 N/A (2) 20.608 - 2,019

Total U.S. Department of Transportation - 4,338,617

Total Federal Awards Expenditures $ 447,630 10,879,320

(1)  Direct award
(2)  Pass-through award

See accompanying notes the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
CLARK COUNTY 

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS  
2 CFR 200.510(b)(6) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
award activity of the City of Springfield (the City) under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended December 31, 2017.  The information on this Schedule is prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Because the Schedule 
presents only a selected portion of the operations of the City, it is not intended to and does not present 
the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the City. 

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the cash basis of accounting. Such expenditures 
are recognized following, as applicable, either the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87 Cost 
Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments (codified in 2 CFR Part 225), or the cost 
principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of 
expenditures may or may not be allowable or may be limited as to reimbursement.  The City has elected 
not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

NOTE 3 – LOANS 

The federal loan programs listed subsequently are administered directly by the City, and balances and 
transactions relating to these programs are included in the City’s basic financial statements.  

As of December 31, 2017, the City has the following programs with federal loans outstanding:  
 Economic Adjustment Assistance (CFDA #11.307) - $444,271 
 Lead-Based Paint Control in Privately-Owned Housing (CFDA #14.900) - $2,723,646 

The above mentioned loan programs have continuing compliance requirements and therefore, the total 
loan balances from previous years have been included on the Schedule.  

NOTE 4 – SUBRECIPIENT PAYMENTS 

The City passes certain federal awards received from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development to other governments or not-for-profit agencies (subrecipients).  As Note 2 describes, the 
City reports expenditures of Federal awards to subrecipients when paid in cash.

As a subrecipient, the City has certain compliance responsibilities, such as monitoring its subrecipients to 
help assure they use these subawards as authorized by laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts 
or grant agreements, and that subrecipients achieve the award’s performance goals. 

NOTE 5 - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require the City to contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support the 
Federally-funded programs.  The City has met its matching requirements.  The Schedule does not include 
the expenditure of non-Federal matching funds. 



City of Springfield 
Clark County, Ohio 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
December 31, 2017 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? None noted 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? None noted 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? None noted 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 
 Material weakness(es) identified? None noted 
 Significant deficiency(ies) identified not 

considered to be material weakness(es)? None noted 

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance 
 with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? None noted 

Identification of major programs: 

   Highway Planning and Construction Cluster: 
    CFDA 20.205 – Highway Planning and Construction 

    
Dollar threshold to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

 None noted 

Section III – Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

 None noted 
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P. 937.399.2000   |   F. 937.399.5433   |   cshco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

City Commission 
City of Springfield 
76 East High Street 
Springfield, Ohio 45502  

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Springfield, Ohio, 
(the “City”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Springfield, Ohio, as of December 31, 2017, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis (pages 23 – 32), schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability and 
pension contributions (pages 85 – 88) and the general fund budgetary comparison schedule (page 89) be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual fund 
financial statements and schedules and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2018 
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

  Clark, Schaefer, Hackett & Co.

Springfield, Ohio 
June 29, 2018 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 26,033,729$           20,288,513$         46,322,242$         
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 11,757,537             3,610,479             15,368,016           
Due from other governments 4,392,401               278,094                4,670,495             
Internal balances 1,615,263               (1,615,263)            -                            
Inventory 611,801                  1,082,397             1,694,198             
Notes receivable (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 13,516,953             -                            13,516,953           
Assets held for resale 557,523                  -                            557,523                
Land and construction in progress 14,724,356             28,150,314           42,874,670           
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 59,076,115 104,191,031 163,267,146
Total assets 132,285,678 155,985,565 288,271,243

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred charge on refunding -                              1,017,789             1,017,789             
Pension 15,580,418 3,394,778 18,975,196

Total deferred outflows of resources 15,580,418 4,412,567 19,992,985

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 3,753,519               3,428,621             7,182,140             
Accrued liabilities 1,731,162               371,479                2,102,641             
Unearned revenue -                              2,534                    2,534                    
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 1,277,722               12,961,882           14,239,604           
Net pension liability 65,944,862             8,754,564             74,699,426           
Other amounts due more than one year 8,654,814 77,899,855 86,554,669

Total liabilities 81,362,079 103,418,935 184,781,014

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year 3,022,338               -                            3,022,338             
Pension 2,754,478 201,089 2,955,567

Total deferred inflows of resources 5,776,816 201,089 5,977,905

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 73,481,206             47,529,907           121,011,113         
Restricted for:

Housing rehabilitation grants 17,526,068             -                            17,526,068           
Capital projects 5,097,885               -                            5,097,885             
Public safety 754,618                  -                            754,618                
Street maintenance 3,819,057               -                            3,819,057             
Community development 984,427                  -                            984,427                
Municipal court 1,100,301               -                            1,100,301             
Debt service 586,000                  -                            586,000                
Permanent endowment, spendable 404,069                  -                            404,069                
Permanent endowment, nonspendable 386,953                  -                            386,953                
Other purposes 1,574,480               -                            1,574,480             

Unrestricted (44,987,863) 9,248,201 (35,739,662)

Total net position 60,727,201$  56,778,108$  117,505,309$
   

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE

EXPENSES SERVICE CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government 13,119,241$          2,349,182$            219,641$               -$                          (10,550,418)$        -$                          (10,550,418)$
Public safety 31,313,382            3,801,821              400,305                 -                            (27,111,256)          -                            (27,111,256)
Health 236,394                 112,363                 83,059                   -                            (40,972)                 -                            (40,972)
Recreation 1,326,076              -                            242                        -                            (1,325,834)            -                            (1,325,834)
Community development 3,158,182              66,379                   2,524,199              -                            (567,604)               -                            (567,604)
Public works 499,261                 -                            -                            -                            (499,261)               -                            (499,261)
Highway and street 7,939,218              527,050                 903,962                 4,751,936              (1,756,270)            -                            (1,756,270)
Interest on long-term debt 119,225 - - - (119,225) - (119,225)

Total governmental activities 57,710,979 6,856,795 4,131,408 4,751,936 (41,970,840) - (41,970,840)

Business-type activities:
Water 8,202,405              6,934,745              -                            -                            -                            (1,267,660)            (1,267,660)
Sewer 15,415,386            11,766,404            -                            -                            -                            (3,648,982)            (3,648,982)
Stormwater 1,750,589              1,941,654              -                            -                            -                            191,065                191,065
Airport 1,327,446 915,776 372,945 - - (38,725) (38,725)

Total business-type activities 26,695,826 21,558,579 372,945 - - (4,764,302) (4,764,302)

Total primary government 84,406,805$  28,415,374$  4,504,353$  4,751,936$  (41,970,840)          (4,764,302)            (46,735,142)

General Revenues:
Taxes:

Income taxes 34,402,247            -                            34,402,247
Property taxes levied 3,068,212              -                            3,068,212
Hotel / motel taxes 1,045,263              -                            1,045,263

State-levied shared taxes not restricted
to specific programs 4,610,117              -                            4,610,117

Federal / state grants and contributions
not restricted to specific program 367,449                 -                            367,449

Investment earnings 315,252                 268,552                583,804
Miscellaneous 2,330,239              -                            2,330,239

Transfers (790,769) 790,769 -
Total general revenue and transfers 45,348,010 1,059,321 46,407,331

Changes in net position 3,377,170              (3,704,981)            (327,811)

Net position - beginning 57,350,031 60,483,089 117,833,120

Net position - ending 60,727,201$  56,778,108$  117,505,309$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

GENERAL PERMANENT NONMAJOR TOTAL
FUND IMPROVEMENT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 6,832,840$           2,742,325$           15,495,191$          25,070,356$          
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 5,734,222 598,670 5,396,207 11,729,099            
Due from other funds 842,787                109,211                877,802                 1,829,800              
Due from other governments 908,426                -                           3,483,975              4,392,401              
Inventory 549                       -                           397,029                 397,578                 
Notes receivable (net of allowances for uncollectibles) -                           -                           13,516,953            13,516,953            
Assets held for resale - - 557,523 557,523

TOTAL ASSETS 14,318,824$  3,450,206$  39,724,680$  57,493,710$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 1,094,031$           979,546$              1,628,257$            3,701,834$            
Accrued liabilities 1,277,598             -                           433,453                 1,711,051              
Due to other funds 229,589 42,171 2,156,843 2,428,603

Total liabilities 2,601,218 1,021,717 4,218,553 7,841,488

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                           -                           3,022,338              3,022,338              
Unavailable revenue 4,010,367 358,637 3,600,702 7,969,706

Total deferred inflows of resources 4,010,367 358,637 6,623,040 10,992,044

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 549                       -                           783,982                 784,531                 
Restricted 81,938                  2,069,852             27,309,234            29,461,024            
Committed 30,899                  -                           2,017,381              2,048,280              
Assigned 1,109,017             -                           -                             1,109,017              
Unassigned 6,484,836 - (1,227,510) 5,257,326

Total fund balances 7,707,239 2,069,852 28,883,087 38,660,178

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 14,318,824$  3,450,206$  39,724,680$  57,493,710$
    

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCES TO NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Total governmental fund balances 38,660,178$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in govermental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 69,266,580

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Intergovernmental receivables 2,384,325              
Income taxes 3,586,373              
Investment earnings 40,650                   
Other receivables 1,958,358              

Internal service funds are used to charge the cost of certain
activities, such as city service facility, to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are
included in the statement of net position. 7,110,497              

Long-term liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the funds:

Bonds, notes and loans payable (2,394,781)             
Unamortized discounts and prepaid insurance 16,007
Compensated absences (7,090,131)             
Accrued interest on long-term debt (7,289)                    

The net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period,
therefore, the liability and related deferred outflows and inflows of
resources are not reported in the governmental funds:

Deferred outflows - pension 15,387,902            
Deferred inflows - pension (2,743,074)             
Net pension liability (65,448,394)

Net position of governmental activities 60,727,201$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

GENERAL PERMANENT NONMAJOR TOTAL
FUND IMPROVEMENT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

REVENUES:
Income taxes 31,276,057$         3,475,118$           -$                           34,751,175$          
Property taxes -                           -                           2,454,289              2,454,289              
Hotel / motel taxes 526,246                -                           976,103                 1,502,349              
State-levied shared taxes 1,690,109             -                           2,704,767              4,394,876              
Intergovernmental 367,449                35,164                  8,601,884              9,004,497              
Charges for services 994,060                -                           2,594,056              3,588,116              
Fees, licenses and permits 594,144                -                           31,060                   625,204                 
Investment earnings 213,898                -                           78,968                   292,866                 
Fines and forfeitures 1,390,099             -                           614,564                 2,004,663              
Special assessments 4,833                    -                           192,302                 197,135                 
Miscellaneous 1,259,042 367,191 1,724,325 3,350,558

Total revenue 38,315,937 3,877,473 19,972,318 62,165,728

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 8,679,259             -                           2,206,511              10,885,770            
Public safety 21,283,653           -                           7,102,942              28,386,595            
Health 77,257                  -                           159,137                 236,394                 
Recreation 464,213                -                           33,415                   497,628                 
Community development 563,458                -                           2,325,250              2,888,708              
Public works -                           -                           359,507                 359,507                 
Highway and street 235,353                -                           3,652,460              3,887,813              

Capital outlay 13,222                  3,880,609             4,781,201              8,675,032              
Debt service:

Principal -                           258,295                195,000                 453,295                 
Interest - 34,701 86,625 121,326

Total expenditures 31,316,415 4,173,605 20,902,048 56,392,068

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 6,999,522 (296,132) (929,730) 5,773,660

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                           77,482                  442,025                 519,507                 
Transfers in 15,000                  -                           2,664,835              2,679,835              
Transfers out (2,270,000) (68,012) (1,382,592) (3,720,604)

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,255,000) 9,470 1,724,268 (521,262)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,744,522             (286,662)              794,538                 5,252,398              

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,962,717 2,356,514 28,088,549 33,407,780

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 7,707,239$  2,069,852$  28,883,087$  38,660,178$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5,252,398$            

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The capital activity is as
follows:

Capital asset additions 5,578,064              
Depreciation expense (4,690,735)             

In the statement of activities, only the gain on sale of capital assets is reported,
whereas, only the proceeds from the sales are reported in the funds. (216,014)                

Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenue in the funds:

Intergovernmental revenue 274,401                 
Income taxes (348,928)                
Investment earnings 20,962                   
Other revenue 804,131                 

Repayment of bond, note and loan principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net
position. 453,295                 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds:

Vacation and sick leave benefits 190,995                 
Interest payable and bond discounts and prepaid insurance amortization 269                        
Changes in the net pension liability recorded as pension expense (3,973,794)             

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as city service facility operations to individual funds. The net
revenue (expense) of the internal service funds are reported with the 
governmental activities. 32,126

Change in net position of governmental activities 3,377,170$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE

WATER SEWER STORMWATER AIRPORT FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS:
Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments 12,970,300$         6,380,066$           550,380$              387,767$              20,288,513$         963,373$               
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 1,118,144 2,179,178 270,759 42,398 3,610,479             28,438
Due from other funds 133,309                816,159                -                            206,986                1,156,454             360,883                 
Due from other governments -                            -                            -                            278,094                278,094                -                             
Inventory 730,762 308,257 - 43,378 1,082,397 214,223

Total current assets 14,952,515 9,683,660 821,139 958,623 26,415,937 1,566,917

Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 2,527,374             22,416,490           -                            3,206,450             28,150,314           352,110                 
Depreciable capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation 13,128,980 71,298,332 16,537,931 3,225,788 104,191,031 4,181,781
Total capital assets 15,656,354 93,714,822 16,537,931 6,432,238 132,341,345 4,533,891

Total assets 30,608,869 103,398,482 17,359,070 7,390,861 158,757,282 6,100,808

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred charge on refunding 315,348                702,441                -                            -                            1,017,789             -                             
Pension 1,544,607 1,736,004 7,835 106,332 3,394,778 192,516

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,859,955 2,438,445 7,835 106,332 4,412,567 192,516

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 501,118                2,648,756             54,634                  224,113                3,428,621             51,685                   
Salaries and benefits payable 102,874                126,245                2,365                    7,167                    238,651                12,822                   
Due to other funds 59,765                  174,710                2                           681,144                915,621                2,913                     
Unearned revenue -                            -                            -                            2,534                    2,534                    -                             
Accrued interest payable 41,600                  90,945                  -                            283                       132,828                -                             
Bonds and loans payable-current 2,461,200             9,397,531             780,622                85,000                  12,724,353           -                             
Capital leases payable-current 80,241                  95,288                  -                            -                            175,529                -                             
Compensated absences-current 40,000                  22,000                  -                            -                            62,000                  -                             
Insurance claims payable-current - - - - - 346,571

Total current liabilities 3,286,798 12,555,475 837,623 1,000,241 17,680,137 413,991

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds and loans payable 4,819,042             56,382,562           15,597,590           (580)                      76,798,614           -                             
Capital leases payable 165,311                195,818                -                            -                            361,129                -                             
Compensated absences 405,931                286,567                23,936                  23,678                  740,112                117,060                 
Net pension liability 3,983,283 4,476,864 20,205 274,212 8,754,564 496,468

Total noncurrent liabilities 9,373,567 61,341,811 15,641,731 297,310 86,654,419 613,528
Total liabilities 12,660,365 73,897,286 16,479,354 1,297,551 104,334,556 1,027,519

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension 91,494 102,832 464 6,299 201,089 11,404

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 10,284,082           30,738,288           159,719                6,347,818             47,529,907           4,533,891              
Unrestricted 9,432,883 1,098,521 727,368 (154,475) 11,104,297 720,510

Total net position 19,716,965$  31,836,809$  887,087$  6,193,343$  58,634,204           5,254,401$
     

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
  service fund activities related to enterprise funds. (1,856,096)
Net position of business-type activities 56,778,108$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE

WATER SEWER STORMWATER AIRPORT FUNDS FUNDS
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 6,630,655$           11,592,081$         1,917,567$           15,815$                20,156,118$         9,564,788$            
Other 231,880 215,587 24,027 160,739 632,233 465,273

Total operating revenues 6,862,535 11,807,668 1,941,594 176,554 20,788,351 10,030,061

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services 3,398,972             5,081,786             45,323                  260,616                8,786,697             511,091                 
Contractual services 1,780,837             2,649,413             550,242                604,804                5,585,296             1,286,903              
Materials and supplies 1,450,260             1,194,884             31,257                  90,715                  2,767,116             1,307,960              
Claims expense -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            7,076,326              
Depreciation 1,244,764 4,948,720 695,848 347,532 7,236,864 294,785

Total operating expenses 7,874,833 13,874,803 1,322,670 1,303,667 24,375,973 10,477,065

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,012,298)            (2,067,135)            618,924                (1,127,113)            (3,587,622)            (447,004)                

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings 130,919                118,579                7,814                    11,240                  268,552                12                          
Miscellaneous revenues 72,210                  -                            60                         546,930                619,200                -                             
Intergovernmental -                            -                            -                            372,945                372,945                -                             
Gain (loss) on sale or disposal of capital assets -                            (41,264)                 -                            192,292                151,028                -                             
Interest expense (238,940)               (1,421,258)            (419,540)               (10,350)                 (2,090,088)            -                             
Miscellaneous expenses - - - (647) (647) -

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (35,811) (1,343,943) (411,666) 1,112,410 (679,010) 12

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (1,048,109)            (3,411,078)            207,258                (14,703)                 (4,266,632)            (446,992)                

Transfers in -                            31,423                  -                            838,316                869,739                250,000                 
Transfers out - - (544) (78,426) (78,970) -

-                            31,423                  (544)                      759,890                790,769                250,000                 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,048,109)            (3,379,655)            206,714                745,187                (3,475,863)            (196,992)                

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 20,765,074 35,216,464 680,373 5,448,156 5,451,393

NET POSITION - ENDING 19,716,965$  31,836,809$  887,087$  6,193,343$  5,254,401$

Adjustment for the net effect of the current year activity
 between internal service funds and the enterprise funds (229,118)
Changes in net position of business-type activities (3,704,981)$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

TOTAL INTERNAL
ENTERPRISE SERVICE

WATER SEWER STORMWATER AIRPORT FUNDS FUNDS
Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers and users 7,689,718$          11,948,600$        1,937,840$          785,145$             22,361,303$        -$
Receipts from interfund services provided -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           10,443,171
Payments to suppliers (3,034,866)           (4,745,318)           (583,483)              (844,366)              (9,208,033)           (2,549,745)
Payments to employees (2,732,834)           (4,264,068)           (70,136)                (211,422)              (7,278,460)           (403,363)
Payments for claims - - - - - (7,540,294)

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,922,018 2,939,214 1,284,221 (270,643) 5,874,810 (50,231)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interfund transfers -                           31,423                 (544)                     759,890               790,769               250,000
Intergovernmental - - - 160,006 160,006 -

Net cash flows from noncapital financing
activities - 31,423 (544) 919,896 950,775 250,000

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Proceeds from revenue bonds -                           13,897,436          -                           -                           13,897,436          -
Proceeds from general obligation notes 1,855,000            5,565,000            -                           -                           7,420,000            -
Manuscript debt issued -                           -                           -                           445,000               445,000               -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (680,419)              (15,278,232)         -                           (900,684)              (16,859,335)         -
Payment on manuscript debt -                           -                           -                           (444,000)              (444,000)              -
Principal paid on capital debt (675,772)              (6,967,603)           (742,065)              (80,353)                (8,465,793)           -
Interest paid on capital debt (183,481) (1,339,164) (419,540) (11,385) (1,953,570) -

Net cash flows from capital and related
financing activities 315,328 (4,122,563) (1,161,605) (991,422) (5,960,262) -

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends received 130,919 118,579 7,814 11,240 268,552 12

Net cash flow from investing activities 130,919 118,579 7,814 11,240 268,552 12

Change in cash and cash equivalents 2,368,265            (1,033,347)           129,886               (330,929)              1,133,875            199,781
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,602,035 7,413,413 420,494 718,696 19,154,638 763,592

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 12,970,300$  6,380,066$  550,380$  387,767$  20,288,513$  963,373$
     

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash flows from operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (1,012,298)$         (2,067,135)$         618,924$             (1,127,113)$         (3,587,622)$         (447,004)$
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

from operating activities:
Depreciation 1,244,764            4,948,720            695,848               347,532               7,236,864            294,785
Rental income 72,210                 -                           60                        546,930               619,200               -
Change in assets, liabilities, and deferred
  outflows/inflows of resources:

Accounts receivable 52,030                 24,816                 (1,747)                  3,405                   78,504                 9,711
Due from other funds 701,081               130,216               -                           (206,986)              624,311               405,782
Inventory 2,354                   (1,347)                  -                           2,181                   3,188                   11,616
Deferred outflows-pension (394,039)              (462,283)              28,212                 (28,690)                (856,800)              (53,187)
Accounts payable 193,878               (899,674)              (1,984)                  (151,028)              (858,808)              (10,790)
Insurance claims payable -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           (418,649)
Salary and benefits payable (1,214)                  13,779                 (769)                     628                      12,424                 377
Due to other funds 1,861                   (14,100)                (2,067)                  290,964               276,658               (3,410)
Unearned revenue -                           -                           -                           (25,722)                (25,722)                -
Compensated absences (27,303)                21,137                 23,683                 419                      17,936                 11,637
Net pension liability 1,067,108            1,220,033            (74,171) 75,285 2,288,255 145,927
Deferred inflows-pension 21,586 25,052 (1,768) 1,552 46,422 2,974

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,922,018$  2,939,214$  1,284,221$  (270,643)$  5,874,810$  (50,231)$
     

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 1,926,207$            
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 596,523                 
Due from other governments 45,593

TOTAL ASSETS 2,568,323$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 1,131,271$            
Accrued liabilities 337,031                 
Restricted deposits 1,100,021

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,568,323$

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity            

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements        
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued  

Governmental Funds

General Fund

Permanent Improvement Fund

Proprietary Funds

Water Fund

Sewer Fund

Stormwater Fund
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued  

Airport Fund

Fiduciary Funds 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation    
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued  

D. Pooled Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments        

E. Inventory             

F. Capital Assets             
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued  

G. Debt Issuance Costs, Premiums, Discounts and Deferred Amounts on Refundings    

H. Vacation and Sick Leave           

I. Pensions             

J. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources         
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued  

K. Fund Balance             

Fund Balance Reporting 
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions

L. Net Position             

Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued  

M. Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues        

N. Interfund Transactions           

O. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations        

P. Estimates             

NOTE 2—POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2—POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS continued  
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2—POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS continued  
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2—POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS continued  

Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2—POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS continued  
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 2—POOLED CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS continued  

NOTE 3—INCOME TAXES 

NOTE 4—PROPERTY TAXES 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 4—PROPERTY TAXES continued

NOTE 5—RECEIVABLES 

Total
Receivables Due From

Net of Other
Taxes Accounts Interest Other Allowances Allowances Governments

Governmental Funds:

Proprietary Funds:

Fiduciary Funds:
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 6—CAPITAL ASSETS 

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Total governmental activities capital assets 73,424$         2,393$           (2,017)$          73,800$        

(in thousands)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 6—CAPITAL ASSETS continued 

Beginning Ending
Business-Type Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Total business-type activities capital assets 122,568$        11,651$         (1,878)$          132,341$       

(in thousands)

NOTE 7—SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND ENCUMBRANCES
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

Net Pension Liability 

net pension liability

Plan Description – Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

Group A Group B Group C 

State and Local State and Local State and Local

Age and Service Requirements:  Age and Service Requirements: Age and Service Requirements:

Formula: Formula: Formula:

Plan Description – Ohio Police & Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) 

- 59 -



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

  Police  Firefighters
2017 Statutory Maximum Contribution Rates

2017 Actual Contribution Rates
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

Actuarial Assumptions – OPERS 

Assumptions 
December 31, 2016 

Valuation
December 31, 2015  

Valuation 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

Discount Rate.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate.

Actuarial Assumptions – OP&F 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 8—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS continued  

Discount Rate.

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate.

Changes Between Measurement Date and Report Date.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

Plan Description – Ohio Police & Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) 

- 66 -



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 9—OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) continued  

Plan Description – Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 10—LEASES

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS

Beginning Ending Due Within
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Total governmental activities 76,672$         7,401$           (8,196)$          75,877$         1,278$     

(in thousands)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued

Beginning Ending Due Within
Business-Type Activities Balance Increase Decrease Balance One Year

Total business-type activities 84,508$         24,335$         (9,227)$          99,616$         12,962$   

(in thousands)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities

(in thousands)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 11—LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS continued

(in thousands)

               * will exclude subordinated revenue bonds until the draws have been completed.

(in thousands)(in thousands)

(in thousands)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 12—INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Due From Due To Transfers Transfers
Other Funds Other Funds In Out

Net 3,347,137$  3,347,137$  3,799,792$ 3,799,792$

NOTE 13—ACCOUNTABILITY
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 14—FUND BALANCES

GENERAL PERMANENT NONMAJOR TOTAL
FUND IMPROVEMENT GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL

Total fund balance 7,707,239$            2,069,852$            28,883,087$          38,660,178$         
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 15—RISK MANAGEMENT

(in millions)

Beginning Incurred Claims/ Claims Ending
Year Balance Adjustments Payments Balance
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 16—CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

NOTE 17—TAX ABATEMENTS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 17—TAX ABATEMENTS continued  

•

•

•

•
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

NOTE 17—TAX ABATEMENTS continued  

NOTE 18—ENDOWMENTS

NOTE 19—RECLASSIFICATIONS 

NOTE 20—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST FOUR YEARS (1) (2)

2017 2016 2015 2014

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability
Traditional Plan 0.127392% 0.130971% 0.131831% 0.131831%
Combined Plan 0.115434% 0.111088% 0.102132% 0.102132%

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 28,864,373$ 22,631,750$ 15,860,952$ 15,530,442$

City's Covered Payroll 16,888,975$ 16,734,158$ 16,746,850$ 16,448,185$

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
  as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 170.91% 135.24% 94.71% 94.42%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
  Total Pension Liability

Traditional Plan 77.25% 81.08% 86.45%
Combined Plan 116.55% 116.90% 114.83%

(1) Information prior to 2014 is not available. The City will continue to present information for years available until
      a full ten-year trend is compiled.

(2) Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the City's measurement date, which is the prior year-end.

Notes to Schedule:

Change in assumptions.  In 2017, changes in assumptions were made based upon an updated experience study that was
completed for the five-year period ended December 31, 2015. Significant changes included a reduction of the discount rate
from 8.0% to 7.5%, a reduction in the wage inflation rate from 3.75% to 3.25%, and transition from the RP-2000 mortality
tables to the RP-2014 mortality tables.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
OHIO POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUND
LAST FOUR YEARS (1) (2)

2017 2016 2015 2014

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.723647% 0.769824% 0.772681% 0.772681%

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 45,835,053$ 49,523,318$ 40,028,113$ 37,631,989$

City's Covered Payroll 15,480,699$ 15,178,970$ 15,273,045$ 15,139,061$

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
  as a Percentage of its Covered Payroll 296.08% 326.26% 262.08% 248.58%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
  Total Pension Liability 68.36% 66.77% 71.71% 73.00%

(1) Information prior to 2014 is not available. The City will continue to present information for years available until
      a full ten-year trend is compiled.

(2) Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the City's measurement date, which is the prior year-end.



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OHIO PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST FIVE YEARS (1)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contributions 2,217,486$      2,026,677$      2,008,099$      2,009,622$      2,138,264$      

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
  Required Contributions (2,217,486)$ (2,026,677)$ (2,008,099)$ (2,009,622)$  (2,138,264)$

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$ -$ -$ -$  -$

City Covered Payroll 17,057,585$    16,888,975$    16,734,158$    16,746,850$    16,448,185$    

Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 13.00% 12.00% 12.00% 12.00% 13.00%

(1) Information prior to 2013 is not available. The City will continue to present information for years available until
      a full ten-year trend is compiled.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CITY CONTRIBUTIONS
OHIO POLICE AND FIRE PENSION FUND
LAST FIVE YEARS (1)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually Required Contributions 3,312,173$      3,294,207$      3,227,919$      3,249,902$      2,753,622$      

Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
  Required Contributions (3,312,173) (3,294,207) (3,227,919) (3,249,902) (2,753,622)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$ -$ -$ -$  -$

City Covered Payroll 16,486,675$    15,480,699$    15,178,970$    15,273,045$    15,139,061$    

Contributions as a Percentage of
  Covered Payroll 20.09% 20.09% 20.09% 20.36% 17.08%

(1) Information prior to 2013 is not available. The City will continue to present information for years available until
      a full ten-year trend is compiled.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

ACTUAL VARIANCE
ORIGINAL FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET

REVENUES:
Income taxes 29,790,000$        30,467,700$        30,600,000$          132,300$             
Hotel / motel taxes 425,000               554,000               530,511                 (23,489)                
State-levied shared taxes 1,822,807            1,758,164            1,696,842              (61,322)                
Intergovernmental 430,000               396,936               356,659                 (40,277)                
Charges for services 1,150,000            1,054,000            991,944                 (62,056)                
Fees, licenses and permits 656,050               619,050               594,144                 (24,906)                
Investment earnings 150,000               200,000               203,828                 3,828                   
Fines and forfeitures 1,341,350            1,381,400            1,381,317              (83)                       
Miscellaneous 2,470,595 3,267,879 4,243,300 975,421

Total revenue 38,235,802 39,699,129 40,598,545 899,416

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 11,921,773          11,863,692          11,225,075            638,617               
Public safety 23,104,839          23,038,018          22,015,704            1,022,314            
Health 84,765                 109,350               98,507                   10,843                 
Recreation 655,290               455,407               464,283                 (8,876)                  
Community development 1,053,027            1,065,490            992,934                 72,556                 
Highway and street 539,830               514,520               493,040                 21,480                 

Capital outlay 240 10,495 4,727 5,768
Total expenditures 37,359,764 37,056,972 35,294,270 1,762,702

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 876,038 2,642,157 5,304,275 2,662,118

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (2,250,000) (2,510,000) (2,306,563) 203,437

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,373,962) 132,157 2,997,712             2,865,555$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,242,934            2,242,934            2,242,934              
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 623,056 623,056 623,056

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 1,492,028$ 2,998,147$ 5,863,702$

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

- 90 -



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

(continued) 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

(continued)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO A-1
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND - MAJOR FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Income taxes 30,467,700$        30,600,000$          132,300$             
Hotel / motel taxes 554,000               530,511                 (23,489)                
State-levied shared taxes 1,758,164            1,696,842              (61,322)                
Intergovernmental 396,936               356,659                 (40,277)                
Charges for services 1,054,000            991,944                 (62,056)                
Fees, licenses and permits 619,050               594,144                 (24,906)                
Investment earnings 200,000               203,828                 3,828                   
Fines and forfeitures 1,381,400            1,381,317              (83)                       
Miscellaneous 3,267,879 4,243,300 975,421

Total revenue 39,699,129 40,598,545 899,416

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
City Commission and Clerk:

Personal services 232,320               228,968                 3,352                   
Operations and maintenance 21,936                 20,584                   1,352                   

City Manager's Office:
Personal services 330,720               318,685                 12,035                 
Operations and maintenance 21,874                 17,578                   4,296                   

Finance - Accounting:
Personal services 857,710               794,132                 63,578                 
Operations and maintenance 112,697               106,024                 6,673                   

Finance - Income Tax:
Personal services 448,100               434,740                 13,360                 
Operations and maintenance 66,417                 53,303                   13,114                 

Finance - Purchasing:
Personal services 233,740               233,581                 159                      
Operations and maintenance 5,634                   4,514                     1,120                   

Finance - Revenue Collections:
Personal services 34,480                 34,191                   289                      
Operations and maintenance 54,012                 51,704                   2,308                   

Personnel:
Personal services 295,520               293,516                 2,004                   
Operations and maintenance 147,210               133,081                 14,129                 

Legal Services - Civil:
Personal services 379,760               377,709                 2,051                   
Operations and maintenance 27,064                 20,601                   6,463                   

Legal Services - Criminal:
Personal services 546,180               540,080                 6,100                   
Operations and maintenance 15,156                 12,259                   2,897                   

Municipal Court - Clerk:
Personal services 1,380,977            1,336,562              44,415                 
Operations and maintenance 337,740               327,502                 10,238                 

Municipal Court - Judicial:
Personal services 2,525,540            2,411,329              114,211               
Operations and maintenance 161,209               145,413                 15,796                 
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO A-1
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND - MAJOR FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(continued)

ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
General Government (continued):

Public Works Administration:
Personal services 5,800                   5,547                     253                      

Engineering:
Personal services 661,430               633,185                 28,245                 
Operations and maintenance 39,796                 35,065                   4,731                   

Information Technology:
Personal services 407,500               390,571                 16,929                 
Operations and maintenance 419,209               387,579                 31,630                 

Service - Facilities:
Personal services 503,990               473,299                 30,691                 
Operations and maintenance 235,002               217,930                 17,072                 

Miscellaneous:
Personal services 36,828                 1,815                     35,013                 
Operations and maintenance 1,318,141 1,184,028 134,113

Total General Government 11,863,692 11,225,075 638,617

Public Safety:
Police Services:

Personal services 9,750,200            9,299,188              451,012               
Operations and maintenance 717,022               636,389                 80,633                 

Fire Services:
Personal services 10,005,770          9,626,790              378,980               
Operations and maintenance 543,482               500,248                 43,234                 

Consolidated Dispatching:
Personal services 1,199,430            1,167,607              31,823                 
Operations and maintenance 62,036                 53,928                   8,108                   

Miscellaneous:
Personal services 15,535                 20,064                   (4,529)                  
Operations and maintenance 744,543 711,490 33,053

Total Public Safety 23,038,018 22,015,704 1,022,314

Health:
Miscellaneous:

Operations and maintenance 109,350 98,507 10,843

Recreation 455,407               464,283                 (8,876)                  
Miscellaneous:

Personal services 5,407                   14,283                   (8,876)                  
Operations and maintenance 450,000 450,000 -

Total Recreation 455,407 464,283 (8,876)
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO A-1
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND - MAJOR FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(concluded)

ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
Community Development:

Planning and Development - Administration:
Personal services 214,060               171,707                 42,353                 
Operations and maintenance 2,485                   1,804                     681                      

Planning and Development - Inspections:
Personal services 281,480               277,965                 3,515                   
Operations and maintenance 45,443                 42,569                   2,874                   

Planning and Development - Code Enforcement:
Personal services 128,100               120,754                 7,346                   
Operations and maintenance 60,863                 54,971                   5,892                   

Human Relations Services:
Personal services 99,240                 96,729                   2,511                   
Operations and maintenance 49,139                 44,027                   5,112                   

Human Relations, Housing and Neighborhood
Services:

Personal services 181,680               180,092                 1,588                   
Operations and maintenance 3,000 2,316 684

Total Community Development 1,065,490 992,934 72,556

Highway and Street:
Central Services - Fleet Maintenance:

Personal services 514,520 493,040 21,480

Capital outlay 10,495 4,727 5,768

Total expenditures 37,056,972 35,294,270 1,762,702

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 2,642,157 5,304,275 2,662,118

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (2,510,000) (2,306,563) 203,437

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 132,157 2,997,712 2,865,555$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,242,934            2,242,934              
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 623,056 623,056

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 2,998,147$ 5,863,702$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO A-1
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
GENERAL FUND - MAJOR FUND (1)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Police Property Disposition ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Safety:
Operations and maintenance 16,600                 5,227                     11,373                 

Capital outlay 8,500 8,495 5
Total expenditures 25,100 13,722 11,378

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (25,100) (13,722) 11,378

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 5,000                   16,230                   11,230                 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (20,100)              2,508                    22,608$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 31,296                 31,296                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 350 350

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 11,546$ 34,154$

Contractor Retainer Fee ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 46,000$ 45,695$  (305)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 100,000 73,291 26,709

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (54,000) (27,596)                 26,404$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 84,075 84,075

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 30,075$ 56,479$

(1) - For GAAP reporting, these funds were combined with the General Fund, but have separate
 legally adopted budgets.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO A-2
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
PERMANENT IMPROVEMENT FUND - MAJOR FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Income taxes 3,385,300$          3,400,000$            14,700$               
Intergovernmental 35,164                 35,164                   -                           
Miscellaneous 333,250 513,838 180,588

Total revenue 3,753,714 3,949,002 195,288

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 5,803,148            4,571,566              1,231,582            
Debt service:

Principal 258,295               258,295                 -                           
Interest 34,701 34,701 -

Total expenditures 6,096,144 4,864,562 1,231,582

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,342,430) (915,560)               1,426,870$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,855,354            1,855,354              
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 494,749 494,749

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 7,673$ 1,434,543$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-1
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (By Fund Type)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NONMAJOR NONMAJOR NONMAJOR TOTAL
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL NONMAJOR NONMAJOR
REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS PERMANENT GOVERNMENTAL

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 13,444,024$        596,908$             666,510$             787,749$             15,495,191$          
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 5,087,588            303,994               1,353                   3,272                   5,396,207             
Due from other funds 874,289               -                          3,513                   -                          877,802                
Due from other governments 2,115,473            -                          1,368,502            -                          3,483,975             
Inventory 397,029               -                          -                          -                          397,029                
Notes receivable (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 13,516,953          -                          -                          -                          13,516,953           
Assets held for resale 557,523 - - - 557,523

TOTAL ASSETS 35,992,879$  900,902$  2,039,878$  791,021$  39,724,680$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 455,533$             -$                        1,172,724$          -$                        1,628,257$           
Accrued liabilities 433,453               -                          -                          -                          433,453                
Due to other funds 1,073,697 582,236 500,910 - 2,156,843

Total liabilities 1,962,683 582,236 1,673,634 - 4,218,553

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year 3,022,338            -                          -                          -                          3,022,338             
Unavailable revenue 2,936,932 303,995 359,061 714 3,600,702

Total deferred inflows of resources 5,959,270 303,995 359,061 714 6,623,040

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 397,029               -                          -                          386,953               783,982                
Restricted 25,731,658          596,908               577,314               403,354               27,309,234           
Committed 2,017,381            -                          -                          -                          2,017,381             
Unassigned (75,142) (582,237) (570,131) - (1,227,510)

Total fund balances 28,070,926 14,671 7,183 790,307 28,883,087

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 35,992,879$  900,902$  2,039,878$  791,021$  39,724,680$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-2
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (By Fund Type)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

NONMAJOR NONMAJOR NONMAJOR TOTAL
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL NONMAJOR NONMAJOR

REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS PERMANENT GOVERNMENTAL
REVENUES:
Property taxes 2,454,289$          -$                         -$                         -$                         2,454,289$          
Hotel / motel taxes 976,103               -                           -                           -                           976,103               
State-levied shared taxes 2,704,767            -                           -                           -                           2,704,767            
Intergovernmental 4,604,987            -                           3,996,897            -                           8,601,884            
Charges for services 2,594,056            -                           -                           -                           2,594,056            
Fees, licenses and permits 31,060                 -                           -                           -                           31,060                 
Investment earnings 52,682                 -                           840                      25,446                 78,968                 
Fines and forfeitures 600,085               -                           14,479                 -                           614,564               
Special assessments 28,876                 90,078                 73,348                 -                           192,302               
Miscellaneous 1,677,050 38,218 9,057 - 1,724,325

Total revenue 15,723,955 128,296 4,094,621 25,446 19,972,318

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 2,206,364            147                      -                           -                           2,206,511            
Public safety 7,102,942            -                           -                           -                           7,102,942            
Health 159,137               -                           -                           -                           159,137               
Recreation 7,565                   -                           -                           25,850                 33,415                 
Community development 2,325,250            -                           -                           -                           2,325,250            
Public works 359,507               -                           -                           -                           359,507               
Highway and street 3,652,460            -                           -                           -                           3,652,460            

Capital outlay 708,778               147                      4,072,276            -                           4,781,201            
Debt service:

Principal -                           195,000               -                           -                           195,000               
Interest - 82,396 4,229 - 86,625

Total expenditures 16,522,003 277,690 4,076,505 25,850 20,902,048

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (798,048) (149,394) 18,116 (404) (929,730)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets 442,025               -                           -                           -                           442,025               
Transfers in 2,078,426            291,234               295,175               -                           2,664,835            
Transfers out (593,564) (295,175) (493,853) - (1,382,592)

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,926,887 (3,941) (198,678) - 1,724,268

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 1,128,839            (153,335)              (180,562)              (404)                     794,538               

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING* 26,942,087 168,006 187,745 790,711 28,088,549

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 28,070,926$  14,671$  7,183$  790,307$  28,883,087$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Community Justice
Development Assistance Micro Safety Community FEMA
Block Grants Grants Loan Services Activities Grant

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 245,100$               -$                           77,994$                 758,813$               65,262$                 846$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) 291,958                 -                             136                        964                        -                             -
Due from other funds 31,178                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due from other governments 98,634                   -                             -                             7,775                     -                             -
Inventory -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             2,209                     -                             -                             -
Assets held for resale 1,344 - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 668,214$  -$  80,339$  767,552$  65,262$  846$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 21,900$                 -$                           -$                           88$                        -$                           -$
Accrued liabilities 15,457                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due to other funds 187,554 - - 27,921 - -

Total liabilities 224,911 - - 28,009 - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue 285,042 - - 1,860 - 846

Total deferred inflows of resources 285,042 - - 1,860 - 846

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Restricted 158,261                 -                             80,339                   737,683                 65,262                   -
Committed -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unassigned - - - - - -

Total fund balances 158,261 - 80,339 737,683 65,262 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 668,214$  -$  80,339$  767,552$  65,262$  846$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO ` B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Moving State Municipal
LEAD Municipal Ohio Street Highway Road
Grants Court Forward Maintenance Improvement Improvement

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 193,978$               2,041,320$            5,093$                   1,705,397$            -$                           -$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) -                             30,992                   -                             7,069                     -                             -
Due from other funds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due from other governments -                             -                             -                             1,111,848              90,150                   297,500
Inventory -                             -                             -                             397,029                 -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) 2,723,646              -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Assets held for resale - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 2,917,624$  2,072,312$  5,093$  3,221,343$  90,150$  297,500$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 266$                      22,269$                 -$                           18,175$                 -$                           -$
Accrued liabilities -                             -                             -                             40,815                   -                             -
Due to other funds - - - 34,965 - -

Total liabilities 266 22,269 - 93,955 - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue - 2,106 - 712,190 57,546 204,055

Total deferred inflows of resources - 2,106 - 712,190 57,546 204,055

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             397,029                 -                             -
Restricted 2,917,358              2,047,937              5,093                     2,018,169              32,604                   93,445
Committed -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unassigned - - - - - -

Total fund balances 2,917,358 2,047,937 5,093 2,415,198 32,604 93,445

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 2,917,624$  2,072,312$  5,093$  3,221,343$  90,150$  297,500$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Indigent Drivers Police Economic
Alcohol and Fire Development Probation Hotel-Motel Right of

Treatment Pension Incentive Fee Excise Tax Way Fee
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 556,726$               -$                           1,974,908$            171,159$               60,619$                 300$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) 5,290                     618,171                 47,500                   5,630                     515,000                 -
Due from other funds -                             -                             35,208                   -                             -                             -
Due from other governments -                             51,615                   -                             -                             -                             -
Inventory -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Assets held for resale - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 562,016$  669,786$  2,057,616$  176,789$  575,619$  300$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                           14,592$                 23,974$                 398$                      30,882$                 -$
Accrued liabilities -                             -                             7,301                     7,748                     -                             -
Due to other funds - - 682,983 1,661 29,736 -

Total liabilities - 14,592 714,258 9,807 60,618 -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             503,723                 -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue - 153,936 47,500 - 451,024 -

Total deferred inflows of resources - 657,659 47,500 - 451,024 -

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Restricted 562,016                 -                             -                             166,982                 63,977                   300
Committed -                             -                             1,295,858              -                             -                             -
Unassigned - (2,465) - - - -

Total fund balances 562,016 (2,465) 1,295,858 166,982 63,977 300

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 562,016$  669,786$  2,057,616$  176,789$  575,619$  300$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Probation Special Fire Division Community
Home Police Service Corrections Continuum FTA Bus

Monitoring Levy Enhancement Act of Care Grant
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 144,692$               529,175$               531,003$               14,431$                 -$                           -$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) 500                        3,093,047              424,077                 -                             -                             -
Due from other funds -                             15,601                   -                             -                             -                             -
Due from other governments -                             258,075                 -                             -                             10,828                   98,549
Inventory -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Assets held for resale - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 145,192$  3,895,898$  955,080$  14,431$  10,828$  98,549$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 1,751$                   74,779$                 34,444$                 2,642$                   10,828$                 98,549$
Accrued liabilities -                             278,959                 83,173                   -                             -                             -
Due to other funds 12,357 20,035 34,307 - - -

Total liabilities 14,108 373,773 151,924 2,642 10,828 98,549

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             2,518,615              -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue - 781,800 98,442 11,789 - 72,677

Total deferred inflows of resources - 3,300,415 98,442 11,789 - 72,677

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Restricted 131,084                 221,710                 -                             -                             -                             -
Committed -                             -                             704,714                 -                             -                             -
Unassigned - - - - - (72,677)

Total fund balances 131,084 221,710 704,714 - - (72,677)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 145,192$  3,895,898$  955,080$  14,431$  10,828$  98,549$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Urban City Prosecutor Neighborhood
Development Law HOME Emergency EDA Revolving Stabilization
Tax Increment Enforcement Program Solutions Loan Program

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments -$                           2,886$                   156,909$               6,000$                   364,711$               460,917$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) -                             -                             -                             -                             7,905                     30,321
Due from other funds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due from other governments -                             -                             27,076                   26,041                   -                             -
Inventory -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             7,005,555              -                             533,968                 2,335,102
Assets held for resale - - - - - 556,179

TOTAL ASSETS -$  2,886$  7,189,540$  32,041$  906,584$  3,382,519$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                           -$                           14,229$                 26,041$                 235$                      4,131$
Accrued liabilities -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due to other funds - - 36,178 6,000 - -

Total liabilities - - 50,407 32,041 235 4,131

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue - - - - 388 30,320

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - - 388 30,320

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Restricted -                             2,886                     7,139,133              -                             905,961                 3,348,068
Committed -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unassigned - - - - - -

Total fund balances - 2,886 7,139,133 - 905,961 3,348,068

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES -$  2,886$  7,189,540$  32,041$  906,584$  3,382,519$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Memorial Special Community CD CIC
Tree Revenue Development EPA Brownfield Development Local

Replacement Trusts Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Revolving Loan Bus Funds
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments -$                           1,275,249$            230,827$               58,268$                 1,645,412$            126,562$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) -                             -                             945                        -                             8,028                     -
Due from other funds -                             -                             111,000                 681,302                 -                             -
Due from other governments -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Inventory -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             824,208                 -                             92,265                   -
Assets held for resale - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS -$  1,275,249$  1,166,980$  739,570$  1,745,705$  126,562$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                           -$                           1,378$                   -$                           16,600$                 -$
Accrued liabilities -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due to other funds - - - - - -

Total liabilities - - 1,378 - 16,600 -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue - - 328 - 2,370 -

Total deferred inflows of resources - - 328 - 2,370 -

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Restricted -                             1,275,249              1,165,274              739,570                 1,726,735              126,562
Committed -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unassigned - - - - - -

Total fund balances - 1,275,249 1,165,274 739,570 1,726,735 126,562

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES -$  1,275,249$  1,166,980$  739,570$  1,745,705$  126,562$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

TOTAL
Special NONMAJOR Unvoted Urban
Street OTPPP ODOT Bus SPECIAL Bond Redevelopment

Openings Bus Grant* Grant* REVENUE Retirement Reserve
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 16,779$                 -$                           22,688$                 13,444,024$          10,908$                 586,000$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) 55                          -                             -                             5,087,588              -                             -
Due from other funds -                             -                             -                             874,289                 -                             -
Due from other governments -                             37,382                   -                             2,115,473              -                             -
Inventory -                             -                             -                             397,029                 -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             -                             13,516,953            -                             -
Assets held for resale - - - 557,523 - -

TOTAL ASSETS 16,834$  37,382$  22,688$  35,992,879$  10,908$  586,000$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                           37,382$                 -$                           455,533$               -$                           -$
Accrued liabilities -                             -                             -                             433,453                 -                             -
Due to other funds - - - 1,073,697 - -

Total liabilities - 37,382 - 1,962,683 - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             -                             -                             3,022,338              -                             -
Unavailable revenue 25 - 22,688 2,936,932 - -

Total deferred inflows of resources 25 - 22,688 5,959,270 - -

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             397,029                 -                             -
Restricted -                             -                             -                             25,731,658            10,908                   586,000
Committed 16,809                   -                             -                             2,017,381              -                             -
Unassigned - - - (75,142) - -

Total fund balances 16,809 - - 28,070,926 10,908 586,000

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 16,834$  37,382$  22,688$  35,992,879$  10,908$  586,000$

* - Effective January 1, 2017, these funds were reclassed from Capital Projects Funds to Special Revenue Funds.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Special TOTAL
Assessment NONMAJOR Special Ohio Municipal Court Sidewalk,

Debt DEBT Capital Public Works Future Curb, and
Retirement SERVICE Projects Commission Facilities Gutter

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments -$                           596,908$               -$                           -$                           576,335$               90,175$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) 303,994                 303,994                 -                             -                             979                        374
Due from other funds -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             3,513
Due from other governments -                             -                             -                             1,368,502              -                             -
Inventory -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Assets held for resale - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 303,994$  900,902$  -$  1,368,502$  577,314$  94,062$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                           -$                           2,600$                   1,136,214$            -$                           33,910$
Accrued liabilities -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Due to other funds 582,236 582,236 - 234,244 - 266,666

Total liabilities 582,236 582,236 2,600 1,370,458 - 300,576

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unavailable revenue 303,995 303,995 - 358,931 - 130

Total deferred inflows of resources 303,995 303,995 - 358,931 - 130

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Restricted -                             596,908                 -                             -                             577,314                 -
Committed -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Unassigned (582,237) (582,237) (2,600) (360,887) - (206,644)

Total fund balances (582,237) 14,671 (2,600) (360,887) 577,314 (206,644)

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 303,994$  900,902$  -$  1,368,502$  577,314$  94,062$

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

TOTAL
Recreational NONMAJOR City Ben Snyder Clara B.
Facility Bond CAPITAL Tricentennial Goldman Park McKinney
Construction PROJECTS Trust Trust Endowment Trust

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments -$                         666,510$             431$                    52,385$               614,297$               120,636$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) -                           1,353                   -                           217                      2,555                     500
Due from other funds -                           3,513                   -                           -                           -                             -
Due from other governments -                           1,368,502            -                           -                           -                             -
Inventory -                           -                           -                           -                           -                             -
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                           -                           -                           -                           -                             -
Assets held for resale - - - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS -$  2,039,878$  431$  52,602$  616,852$  121,136$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                         1,172,724$          -$                         -$                         -$                           -$
Accrued liabilities -                           -                           -                           -                           -                             -
Due to other funds - 500,910 - - - -

Total liabilities - 1,673,634 - - - -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                           -                           -                           -                           -                             -
Unavailable revenue - 359,061 - 75 465 174

Total deferred inflows of resources - 359,061 - 75 465 174

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable -                           -                           100                      51,772                 215,859                 119,222
Restricted -                           577,314               331                      755                      400,528                 1,740
Committed -                           -                           -                           -                           -                             -
Unassigned - (570,131) - - - -

Total fund balances - 7,183 431 52,527 616,387 120,962

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES -$  2,039,878$  431$  52,602$  616,852$  121,136$
      

PERMANENT FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017
concluded

TOTAL
TOTAL NONMAJOR

PERMANENT GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS FUNDS

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 787,749$               15,495,191$
Receivables (net of allowances for

uncollectibles) 3,272                     5,396,207
Due from other funds -                             877,802
Due from other governments -                             3,483,975
Inventory -                             397,029
Notes receivable (net of allowances

for uncollectibles) -                             13,516,953
Assets held for resale - 557,523

TOTAL ASSETS 791,021$  39,724,680$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                           1,628,257$
Accrued liabilities -                             433,453
Due to other funds - 2,156,843

Total liabilities - 4,218,553

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Property taxes levied for next year -                             3,022,338
Unavailable revenue 714 3,600,702

Total deferred inflows of resources 714 6,623,040

FUND BALANCES:
Nonspendable 386,953                 783,982
Restricted 403,354                 27,309,234
Committed -                             2,017,381
Unassigned - (1,227,510)

Total fund balances 790,307 28,883,087

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS

OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 791,021$  39,724,680$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Community Justice
Development Assistance Micro Safety Community FEMA
Block Grants Grants Loan Services Activities Grant

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental 1,754,047              21,306                   -                             74,847                   -                             -
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings -                             -                             -                             2,037                     -                             -
Fines and forfeitures 4,368                     -                             -                             111,407                 -                             -
Special assessments 28,876                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous 7,512 - 125 17,790 6,360 -

Total revenue 1,794,803 21,306 125 206,081 6,360 -

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 40,105                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public safety 45,138                   -                             -                             157,283                 6,206                     -
Health -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Community development 1,554,428              -                             125                        -                             -                             -
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -

Capital outlay 2,500                     -                             -                             284,082                 1,500                     -
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest - - - - - -

Total expenditures 1,642,171 - 125 441,365 7,706 -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 152,632 21,306 - (235,284) (1,346) -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers out - - - - (156,344) -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - (156,344) -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 152,632                 21,306                   -                             (235,284)                (157,690)                -

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 5,629 (21,306) 80,339 972,967 222,952 -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 158,261$  -$  80,339$  737,683$  65,262$  -$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Moving State Municipal
LEAD Municipal Ohio Street Highway Road
Grants Court Forward Maintenance Improvement Improvement

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             1,953,537              158,395                 592,835
Intergovernmental -                             11,359                   -                             -                             -                             -
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             206,568                 -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings -                             15,068                   -                             14,462                   -                             -
Fines and forfeitures -                             370,735                 -                             -                             -                             -
Special assessments -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous 530 2,923 - 781,454 - -

Total revenue 530 400,085 - 2,956,021 158,395 592,835

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             51,149                   -                             40,000                   -                             -
Public safety -                             -                             -                             815,624                 -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Community development 48,978                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public works -                             -                             -                             359,507                 -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             1,342,170              153,961                 591,286

Capital outlay -                             267,701                 -                             -                             -                             -
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest - - - - - -

Total expenditures 48,978 318,850 - 2,557,301 153,961 591,286

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (48,448) 81,235 - 398,720 4,434 1,549

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers out - - - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (48,448)                  81,235                   -                             398,720                 4,434                     1,549

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,965,806 1,966,702 5,093 2,016,478 28,170 91,896

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 2,917,358$  2,047,937$  5,093$  2,415,198$  32,604$  93,445$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Indigent Drivers Police Economic
Alcohol and Fire Development Probation Hotel-Motel Right of

Treatment Pension Incentive Fee Excise Tax Way Fee
REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           409,056$               -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             976,103                 -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             52,262                   -                             -                             -                             -
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             74,750                   -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             31,060
Investment earnings -                             -                             (1,144)                    -                             -                             -
Fines and forfeitures 112,363                 -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Special assessments -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous - - 430,969 1,458 - -

Total revenue 112,363 461,318 429,825 76,208 976,103 31,060

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             -                             481,642                 78,282                   967,762                 -
Public safety -                             201,316                 -                             -                             -                             -
Health 26,048                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Community development -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             33,085

Capital outlay -                             -                             3,152                     -                             -                             -
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest - - - - - -

Total expenditures 26,048 201,316 484,794 78,282 967,762 33,085

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 86,315 260,002 (54,969) (2,074) 8,341 (2,025)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in -                             -                             78,426                   -                             -                             -
Transfers out - (260,205) (162,015) - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - (260,205) (83,589) - - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 86,315                   (203)                       (138,558)                (2,074)                    8,341                     (2,025)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 475,701 (2,262) 1,434,416 169,056 55,636 2,325

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 562,016$  (2,465)$  1,295,858$  166,982$  63,977$  300$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Probation Special Fire Division Community
Home Police Service Corrections Continuum FTA Bus

Monitoring Levy Enhancement Act of Care Grant
REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           2,045,233$            -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             249,950                 -                             190,036                 134,514                 660,342
Charges for services 35,062                   -                             2,262,422              -                             -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings -                             2,385                     -                             -                             -                             -
Fines and forfeitures -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Special assessments -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous - 28,870 22,157 - - -

Total revenue 35,062 2,326,438 2,284,579 190,036 134,514 660,342

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 35,724                   -                             -                             182,785                 -                             -
Public safety -                             3,040,688              2,824,759              -                             -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Community development -                             -                             -                             -                             134,514                 -
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             806,153

Capital outlay -                             58                          2                            7,251                     -                             1,869
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest - - - - - -

Total expenditures 35,724 3,040,746 2,824,761 190,036 134,514 808,022

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (662) (714,308) (540,182) - - (147,680)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in -                             1,000,000              800,000                 -                             -                             -
Transfers out - - (15,000) - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - 1,000,000 785,000 - - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (662)                       285,692                 244,818                 -                             -                             (147,680)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 131,746 (63,982) 459,896 - - 75,003

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 131,084$  221,710$  704,714$  -$  -$  (72,677)$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Urban City Prosecutor Neighborhood
Development Law HOME Emergency EDA Revolving Stabilization
Tax Increment Enforcement Program Solutions Loan Program

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             -                             585,608                 133,089                 1,411                     -
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings 6                            -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Fines and forfeitures -                             1,212                     -                             -                             -                             -
Special assessments -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous - - 72,032 - 25,898 15,839

Total revenue 6 1,212 657,640 133,089 27,309 15,839

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public safety -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             133,089                 -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Community development -                             -                             421,756                 -                             14,454                   79,421
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -

Capital outlay -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             6,856
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest - - - - - -

Total expenditures - - 421,756 133,089 14,454 86,277

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 6 1,212 235,884 - 12,855 (70,438)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers out - - - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 6                            1,212                     235,884                 -                             12,855                   (70,438)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (6) 1,674 6,903,249 - 893,106 3,418,506

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$  2,886$  7,139,133$  -$  905,961$  3,348,068$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Memorial Special Community CD CIC
Tree Revenue Development EPA Brownfield Development Local

Replacement Trusts Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Revolving Loan Bus Funds
REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             16,341
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings -                             -                             851                        -                             19,017                   -
Fines and forfeitures -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Special assessments -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous 280 102,642 14,439 - 4,104 123,833

Total revenue 280 102,642 15,290 - 23,121 140,174

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             126,783                 -                             -                             -                             202,132
Public safety -                             11,928                   -                             -                             -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation 280                        7,285                     -                             -                             -                             -
Community development -                             -                             52,993                   -                             18,581                   -
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -

Capital outlay -                             42,766                   -                             -                             -                             13,505
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest - - - - - -

Total expenditures 280 188,762 52,993 - 18,581 215,637

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (86,120) (37,703) - 4,540 (75,463)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             440,000                 -                             -                             -                             2,025
Transfers in -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             200,000
Transfers out - - - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - 440,000 - - - 202,025

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                             353,880                 (37,703)                  -                             4,540                     126,562

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - 921,369 1,202,977 739,570 1,722,195 -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$  1,275,249$  1,165,274$  739,570$  1,726,735$  126,562$

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

TOTAL
Special NONMAJOR Unvoted Urban
Street OTPPP ODOT Bus SPECIAL Bond Redevelopment

Openings Bus Grant* Grant* REVENUE Retirement Reserve
REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           2,454,289$            -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             976,103                 -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             2,704,767              -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             637,991                 81,884                   4,604,987              -                             -
Charges for services 15,254                   -                             -                             2,594,056              -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             31,060                   -                             -
Investment earnings -                             -                             -                             52,682                   -                             -
Fines and forfeitures -                             -                             -                             600,085                 -                             -
Special assessments -                             -                             -                             28,876                   -                             -
Miscellaneous - - 17,835 1,677,050 38,218 -

Total revenue 15,254 637,991 99,719 15,723,955 38,218 -

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             -                             -                             2,206,364              -                             -
Public safety -                             -                             -                             7,102,942              -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             159,137                 -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             7,565                     -                             -
Community development -                             -                             -                             2,325,250              -                             -
Public works -                             -                             -                             359,507                 -                             -
Highway and street 58,139                   567,947                 99,719                   3,652,460              -                             -

Capital outlay -                             77,536                   -                             708,778                 -                             -
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             195,000                 -
Interest - - - - 62,990 -

Total expenditures 58,139 645,483 99,719 16,522,003 257,990 -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (42,885) (7,492) - (798,048) (219,772) -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             442,025                 -                             -
Transfers in -                             -                             -                             2,078,426              230,680                 -
Transfers out - - - (593,564) - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - - 1,926,887 230,680 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (42,885)                  (7,492)                    -                             1,128,839              10,908                   -

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 59,694 7,492 - 26,942,087 - 586,000

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 16,809$  -$  -$  28,070,926$  10,908$  586,000$

* - Effective January 1, 2017, these funds were reclassed from Capital Projects Funds to Special Revenue Funds.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDSSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

Special TOTAL
Assessment NONMAJOR Special Ohio Municipal Court Sidewalk,

Debt DEBT Capital Public Works Future Curb, and
Retirement SERVICE Projects Commission Facilities Gutter

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             -                             501,109                 3,495,788              -                             -
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             814
Fines and forfeitures -                             -                             -                             -                             14,479                   -
Special assessments 90,078                   90,078                   -                             -                             -                             73,348
Miscellaneous - 38,218 - - - 5,899

Total revenue 90,078 128,296 501,109 3,495,788 14,479 80,061

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government 147                        147                        -                             -                             -                             -
Public safety -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Community development -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -

Capital outlay 147                        147                        82,688                   3,756,670              -                             232,918
Debt service:

Principal -                             195,000                 -                             -                             -                             -
Interest 19,406 82,396 - - - 2,394

Total expenditures 19,700 277,690 82,688 3,756,670 - 235,312

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 70,378 (149,394) 418,421 (260,882) 14,479 (155,251)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in 60,554                   291,234                 -                             -                             -                             295,175
Transfers out (295,175) (295,175) (492,500) - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) (234,621) (3,941) (492,500) - - 295,175

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (164,243)                (153,335)                (74,079)                  (260,882)                14,479                   139,924

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (417,994) 168,006 71,479 (100,005) 562,835 (346,568)

FUND BALANCE - ENDING (582,237)$  14,671$  (2,600)$  (360,887)$  577,314$  (206,644)$

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
continued

TOTAL
Recreational NONMAJOR City Ben Snyder Clara B.
Facility Bond CAPITAL Tricentennial Goldman Park McKinney
Construction PROJECTS Trust Trust Endowment Trust

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$                           -$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
State-levied shared taxes -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Intergovernmental -                             3,996,897              -                             -                             -                             -
Charges for services -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Fees, licenses and permits -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Investment earnings 26                          840                        5                            617                        23,398                   1,426
Fines and forfeitures -                             14,479                   -                             -                             -                             -
Special assessments -                             73,348                   -                             -                             -                             -
Miscellaneous 3,158 9,057 - - - -

Total revenue 3,184 4,094,621 5 617 23,398 1,426

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public safety -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Health -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Recreation -                             -                             -                             58                          25,000                   792
Community development -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Public works -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Highway and street -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -

Capital outlay -                             4,072,276              -                             -                             -                             -
Debt service:

Principal -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Interest 1,835 4,229 - - - -

Total expenditures 1,835 4,076,505 - 58 25,000 792

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,349 18,116 5 559 (1,602) 634

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers in -                             295,175                 -                             -                             -                             -
Transfers out (1,353) (493,853) - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,353) (198,678) - - - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (4)                           (180,562)                5                            559                        (1,602)                    634

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 4 187,745 426 51,968 617,989 120,328

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$  7,183$  431$  52,527$  616,387$  120,962$

PERMANENT FUNDS
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-4
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
concluded

TOTAL
TOTAL NONMAJOR

PERMANENT GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS FUNDS

REVENUES:
Property taxes -$                           2,454,289$
Hotel / motel taxes -                             976,103
State-levied shared taxes -                             2,704,767
Intergovernmental -                             8,601,884
Charges for services -                             2,594,056
Fees, licenses and permits -                             31,060
Investment earnings 25,446                   78,968
Fines and forfeitures -                             614,564
Special assessments -                             192,302
Miscellaneous - 1,724,325

Total revenue 25,446 19,972,318

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government -                             2,206,511
Public safety -                             7,102,942
Health -                             159,137
Recreation 25,850                   33,415
Community development -                             2,325,250
Public works -                             359,507
Highway and street -                             3,652,460

Capital outlay -                             4,781,201
Debt service:

Principal -                             195,000
Interest - 86,625

Total expenditures 25,850 20,902,048

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (404) (929,730)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Proceeds from the sale of assets -                             442,025
Transfers in -                             2,664,835
Transfers out - (1,382,592)

Total other financing sources (uses) - 1,724,268

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (404)                       794,538

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 790,711 28,088,549

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 790,307$  28,883,087$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Community Development Block Grants ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 1,704,908$          1,704,908$            -$                         
Fines and forfeitures 4,611                   4,611                     -                           
Miscellaneous 91,932 91,932 -

Total revenue 1,801,451 1,801,451 -

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Personal services 22,319                 22,319                   -                           
Operations and maintenance 17,695                 17,695                   -                           

Public Safety:
Personal services 17,237                 17,237                   -                           
Operations and maintenance 11,961                 11,961                   -                           

Community Development:
Personal services 495,604               495,604                 -                           
Operations and maintenance 1,289,812            1,366,367              (76,555)                

Capital outlay 2,500 2,500 -
Total expenditures 1,857,128 1,933,683 (76,555)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (55,677) (132,232) (76,555)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances in 50,000                 50,000                   -                           
Transfers in 150,000               150,000                 -                           
Advances out (50,000) (50,000) -

Total other financing sources (uses) 150,000 150,000 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 94,323 17,768                  (76,555)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 51,054                 51,054                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 99,722 99,722

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 245,099$ 168,544$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Justice Assistance Grants ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 21,306$ 21,306$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Safety:
Operations and maintenance 21,306 21,306 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                         -                            -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ -$

Micro Loan ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 2,458$ 2,458$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 2,675 5,397 (2,722)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (217) (2,939)                   (2,722)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 72,939                 72,939                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 5,272 5,272

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 77,994$ 75,272$
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DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Safety Services ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 62,323$               68,098$                 5,775$                 
Investment earnings 1,781                   1,781                     -                           
Fines and forfeitures 67,000                 111,367                 44,367                 
Miscellaneous 17,850 17,790 (60)

Total revenue 148,954 199,036 50,082

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Safety:
Operations and maintenance 408,054               155,221                 252,833               

Capital outlay 288,780 284,085 4,695
Total expenditures 696,834 439,306 257,528

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (547,880) (240,270) 307,610$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 988,134               988,134                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 1,921 1,921

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 442,175$ 749,785$

Community Activities ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 6,360$ 6,360$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 7,169                   6,526                     643                      

Public Safety:
Operations and maintenance 62,075                 -                             62,075                 

Capital outlay 252,880 252,800 80
Total expenditures 322,124 259,326 62,798

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (315,764) (252,966) 62,798$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 64,238                 64,238                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 253,670 253,670

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 2,144$ 64,942$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

FEMA ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 846$ 846$

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 846$ 846$

LEAD Grants ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 70,559$ 70,559$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 112,639 144,515 (31,876)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (42,080) (73,956)                 (31,876)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 234,124 234,124

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 192,044$ 160,168$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Municipal Court ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental -$                         11,359$                 11,359$               
Investment earnings 9,000                   14,315                   5,315                   
Fines and forfeitures 362,000               367,939                 5,939                   
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,922 922

Total revenue 373,000 396,535 23,535

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Personal service 5,600                   4,900                     700                      
Operations and maintenance 126,579               84,953                   41,626                 

Capital outlay 700,695 450,941 249,754
Total expenditures 832,874 540,794 292,080

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (459,874) (144,259) 315,615$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,814,248            1,814,248              
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 161,876 161,876

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 1,516,250$ 1,831,865$

Moving Ohio Forward ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 5,093$ 5,093$

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 5,093$ 5,093$
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DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Street Maintenance ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
State-levied shared taxes 1,945,000$          1,869,352$            (75,648)$              
Charges for services 200,000               28,480                   (171,520)              
Investment earnings 15,000                 14,543                   (457)                     
Miscellaneous 773,203 787,496 14,293

Total revenue 2,933,203 2,699,871 (233,332)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 40,000                 40,000                   -                           

Public Safety:
Personal service 679,410               610,902                 68,508                 
Operations and maintenance 296,719               244,562                 52,157                 

Public Works:
Personal service 6,100                   5,547                     553                      
Operations and maintenance 466,000               466,000                 -                           

Highway and Street:
Personal service 753,240               728,281                 24,959                 
Operations and maintenance 742,094 697,000 45,094
Total expenditures 2,983,563 2,792,292 191,271

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (50,360) (92,421)                 (42,061)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,180,122            1,180,122              
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 175,596 175,596

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 1,305,358$ 1,263,297$

State Highway Improvement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
State-levied shared taxes 157,703$ 151,569$  (6,134)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 160,095 153,961 6,134

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,392) (2,392)                   -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,392 2,392

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ -$
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DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Municipal Road Improvement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
State-levied shared taxes 591,286$ 591,286$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 591,286 591,286 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                         -                            -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ -$

Indigent Drivers Alcohol Treatment ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures 98,000$ 111,360$  13,360$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Health:
Operations and maintenance 149,408 148,409 999

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (51,408) (37,049)                 14,359$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 432,412               432,412                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 69,408 69,408

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 450,412$ 464,771$
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Police and Fire Pension ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Property taxes 409,598$             409,599$               1$                        
Intergovernmental 52,275 52,262 (13)

Total revenue 461,873 461,861 (12)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Safety:
Personal service 193,874               193,874                 -                           
Operations and maintenance 7,782 7,782 -
Total expenditures 201,656 201,656 -

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 260,217 260,205 (12)

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Transfers out (260,205) (260,205) -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 12 -                            (12)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 12$ -$
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Economic Development Incentive ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 829$                    829$                      -$                         
Miscellaneous 545,000 582,709 37,709

Total revenue 545,829 583,538 37,709

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Personal service 220,880               216,344                 4,536                   
Operations and maintenance 506,627               415,622                 91,005                 

Capital outlay 216,100 18,012 198,088
Total expenditures 943,607 649,978 293,629

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (397,778) (66,440) 331,338

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                           465,000                 465,000               
Advances out (35,208)                (35,208)                  -                           
Transfers out (267,160) (267,154) 6

Total other financing sources (uses) (302,368) 162,638 465,006

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (700,146) 96,198                  796,344$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,667,637            1,667,637              
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 123,074 123,074

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 1,090,565$ 1,886,909$
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Probation Fee ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Charges for services 75,000$               73,799$                 (1,201)$                
Miscellaneous 107,000 156,972 49,972

Total revenue 182,000 230,771 48,771

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Personal service 221,890               219,879                 2,011                   
Operations and maintenance 17,827                 16,437                   1,390                   
Total expenditures 239,717 236,316 3,401

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (57,717) (5,545)                   52,172$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 174,170               174,170                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 1,230 1,230

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 117,683$ 169,855$

Hotel-Motel Excise Tax ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Hotel / motel taxes 1,000,000$ 967,763$  (32,237)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 1,069,135 976,279 92,856

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (69,135) (8,516)                   60,619$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 69,135 69,135

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ 60,619$
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Right-of-Way Fee ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Fees, licenses and permits 30,760$ 31,060$  300$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 33,085 33,085 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,325) (2,025)                   300$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 2,325 2,325

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ 300$

Probation Home Monitoring ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Charges for services 35,000$ 34,792$  (208)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 102,299 90,719 11,580

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (67,299) (55,927)                 11,372$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 105,547               105,547                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 42,134 42,134

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 80,382$ 91,754$
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Special Police Levy ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Property taxes 2,048,000$          2,047,950$            -$                         
Intergovernmental 261,000               261,309                 309                      
Investment earnings 5,000                   5,052                     52                        
Miscellaneous 48,870 50,348 1,478

Total revenue 2,362,870 2,364,659 1,839

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Safety:
Personal service 3,160,760            2,797,546              363,214               
Operations and maintenance 146,499               126,188                 20,311                 

Capital outlay 58 58 -
Total expenditures 3,307,317 2,923,792 383,525

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (944,447) (559,133) 385,364

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 1,000,000 1,000,000 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 55,553 440,867                385,364$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 77,323                 77,323                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 7,826 7,826

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 140,702$ 526,016$
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Fire Division Service Enhancement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Charges for services 2,250,000$          2,322,268$            72,268$               
Miscellaneous 24,907 27,932 3,025

Total revenue 2,274,907 2,350,200 75,293

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Safety:
Personal service 2,729,150            2,474,572              254,578               
Operations and maintenance 42,542 409,099 (366,557)
Total expenditures 2,771,692 2,883,671 (111,979)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (496,785) (533,471) (36,686)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 800,000 800,000 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 303,215 266,529                (36,686)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 155,043               155,043                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 39,383 39,383

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 497,641$ 460,955$

- 134 -



CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Community Corrections Act ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 173,015$ 173,015$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 181,372               181,372                 -                           

Capital outlay 7,251 7,251 -
Total expenditures 188,623 188,623 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (15,608) (15,608)                 -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (3,593)                  (3,593)                    
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 33,632 33,632

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 14,431$ 14,431$

Continuum of Care ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 136,250$ 136,250$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 136,250 269,842 (133,592)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                         (133,592)              (133,592)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (132,621)              (132,621)                
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 132,621 132,621

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ (133,592)$
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FTA Bus Grant ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 752,181$ 752,181$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 871,951               2,360,415              (1,488,464)           

Capital outlay 1,869 1,869 -
Total expenditures 873,820 2,362,284 (1,488,464)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (121,639) (1,610,103) (1,488,464)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (1,862,741)           (1,862,741)             
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 1,984,380 1,984,380

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ (1,488,464)$

Urban Development Tax Increment ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings -$ (3)$  (3)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 1,200 1,200 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,200) (1,203)                   (3)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,203 1,203

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 3$ -$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

City Prosecutor Law Enforcement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures -$ 1,212$  1,212$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 1,674 - 1,674

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (1,674) 1,212                    2,886$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,674 1,674

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ 2,886$

HOME Program ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 571,580$             571,580$               -$                         
Miscellaneous 198,585 198,367 (218)

Total revenue 770,165 769,947 (218)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 698,427 1,064,898 (366,471)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 71,738 (294,951) (366,689)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in -                           218                        218                      
Transfers out (218) (218) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (218) - 218

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 71,520 (294,951)              (366,471)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (438,146)              (438,146)                
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 515,324 515,324

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 148,698$ (217,773)$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Emergency Solutions ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 123,637$             123,637$               -$                         

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Health:
Operations and maintenance 123,637 239,567 (115,930)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES - (115,930) (115,930)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances in 6,000                   6,000                     -                           
Advances out (6,000) (6,000) -

Total other financing sources (uses) - - -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                         (115,930)              (115,930)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (87,915)                (87,915)                  
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 93,915 93,915

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 6,000$ (109,930)$

EDA Revolving Loan ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental -$                         2,061$                   2,061$                 
Miscellaneous 165,500 202,789 37,289

Total revenue 165,500 204,850 39,350

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 66,207 66,207 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 99,293 138,643                39,350$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 228,493 228,493

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 327,786$ 367,136$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Neighborhood Stabilization Program ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 116,709$ 116,709$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 78,146                 223,987                 (145,841)              

Capital outlay 6,856 6,856 -
Total expenditures 85,002 230,843 (145,841)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 31,707 (114,134)              (145,841)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 381,036               381,036                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 46,027 46,027

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 458,770$ 312,929$

Memorial Tree Replacement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 280$ 280$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Recreation:
Operations and maintenance 280 280 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                         -                            -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ -$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Special Revenue Trusts ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous 529,543 542,641 13,098

Total revenue 529,543 542,641 13,098

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 192,605               126,783                 65,822                 

Public Safety:
Operations and maintenance 131,475               15,455                   116,020               

Recreation:
Operations and maintenance 12,167                 7,284                     4,883                   

Capital outlay 648,312 156,020 492,292
Total expenditures 984,559 305,542 679,017

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (455,016) 237,099                692,115$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 917,522               917,522                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 7,374 7,374

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 469,880$ 1,161,995$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Community Development Rehabilitation ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings -$                         1,378$                   1,378$                 
Miscellaneous 83,000 97,352 14,352

Total revenue 83,000 98,730 15,730

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 56,010 56,010 -

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 26,990 42,720 15,730

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Advances in -                           131,000                 131,000               
Advances out (56,000) (56,000) -

Total other financing sources (uses) (56,000) 75,000 131,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (29,010) 117,720                146,730$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 110,464               110,464                 
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 2,380 2,380

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 83,834$ 230,564$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

EPA Brownfield Revolving Loan ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 58,268$ 58,268$

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 58,268$ 58,268$

CD CIC Development Revolving Loan ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 16,600$               16,600$                 -$                         
Miscellaneous 33,964 33,964 -

Total revenue 50,564 50,564 -

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Community Development:
Operations and maintenance 15,147 15,147 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 35,417 35,417                  -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,624,827 1,624,827

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 1,660,244$ 1,660,244$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Local Bus Funds ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 235,500$             -$                           (235,500)$            
Miscellaneous - 125,857 125,857

Total revenue 235,500 125,857 (109,643)

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 202,130               302,147                 (100,017)              

Capital outlay 13,506 13,506 -
Total expenditures 215,636 315,653 (100,017)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 19,864 (189,796) (209,660)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in - 200,000 200,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 19,864 10,204                  (9,660)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 16,341 16,341

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 36,205$ 26,545$

Special Street Openings ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Charges for services 15,000 15,249 249

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 71,375 68,314 3,061

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (56,375) (53,065)                 3,310$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 69,844 69,844

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 13,469$ 16,779$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-5
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

OTPPP Bus Grant ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 615,236$ 615,236$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 547,020               584,402                 (37,382)                

Capital outlay 77,536 77,536 -
Total expenditures 624,556 661,938 (37,382)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (9,320) (46,702)                 (37,382)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (16,965)                (16,965)                  
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 26,285 26,285

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ (37,382)$

ODOT Bus Grant ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 104,572$             104,572$               -$                         
Miscellaneous 17,835 17,835 -

Total revenue 122,407 122,407 -

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Highway and Street:
Operations and maintenance 99,719                 206,992                 (107,273)              

Capital outlay - 666,199 (666,199)
Total expenditures 99,719 873,191 (773,472)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 22,688 (750,784)              (773,472)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (710,039)              (710,039)                
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 710,039 710,039

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 22,688$ (750,784)$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-6
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unvoted Bond Retirement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Miscellaneous -$ 38,217$  38,217$

EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:

Principal 1,830,000            1,830,000              -                           
Interest 999,290 999,289 1

Total expenditures 2,829,290 2,829,289 1

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (2,829,290) (2,791,072) 38,218

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 2,057,652 2,030,342 (27,310)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (771,638) (760,730) 10,908$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 771,638 771,638

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ 10,908$

Urban Redevelopment Reserve ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:

Principal 586,000 - 586,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (586,000) -                            586,000$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 586,000 586,000

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ 586,000$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-6
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Special Assessment Bond Retirement ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Special assessments 209,000$ 90,078$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 147                      147                        -                           

Capital outlay 147                      147                        -                           
Debt service:

Principal 131,900               131,900                 -                           
Interest 19,078 19,078 -

Total expenditures 151,272 151,272 -

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 57,728 (61,194) -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in - 60,554 60,554

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 57,728 (640)                      60,554$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 640 640

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 58,368$ -$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-7
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Special Capital Projects ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 501,109$ 501,109$  -$

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 576,209 587,587 (11,378)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (75,100) (86,478) (11,378)

OTHER FINANCING USES:
Advances out (465,000) (465,000) -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (540,100) (551,478) (11,378)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 28,887                 28,887                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 511,213 511,213

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$ (11,378)$

Ohio Public Works Commission ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental 3,674,711$ 3,735,548$ 60,837$

EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay 4,022,436 6,170,899 (2,148,463)

DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES (347,725) (2,435,351) (2,087,626)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Advances in 20,493 20,493 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (327,232) (2,414,858) (2,087,626)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING (1,522,345)           (1,522,345)             
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 1,788,740 1,788,740

FUND BALANCE - ENDING (60,837)$ (2,148,463)$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-7
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Municipal Court Future Facilities ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures 15,000$ 14,323$  (677)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government:
Operations and maintenance 10,000 - 10,000

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5,000 14,323                  9,323$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 562,012 562,012

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 567,012$ 576,335$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-8
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

City Tricentennial Trust ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 5$ 5$  -$

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5 5                           -$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 426 426

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 431$ 431$

Ben Goldman Trust ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 400$ 533$  133$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Recreation:
Operations and maintenance 1,202 255 947

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (802) 278                       1,080$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 52,379                 52,379                   
PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES APPROPRIATED 200 200

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 51,777$ 52,857$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO B-8
DETAILED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGET (NON-GAAP) BASIS
NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Snyder Park Endowment ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 30,000$ 23,502$  (6,498)$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Recreation:
Operations and maintenance 25,000 25,000 -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 5,000 (1,498)                   (6,498)$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 618,406 618,406

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 623,406$ 616,908$

Clara B. McKinney Trust ACTUAL VARIANCE
FINAL INCLUDING WITH FINAL

BUDGET ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET
REVENUES:
Investment earnings 1,200$ 1,232$  32$

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Public Works:
Operations and maintenance 1,630                   792                        838                      

Recreation:
Operations and maintenance 1,630 - 1,630
Total expenditures 3,260 792 2,468

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,060) 440                       2,500$

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 121,283 121,283

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 119,223$ 121,723$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO C-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

CITY WORKERS' ACCRUED HEALTH TOTAL
CENTRAL SERVICE COMPENSATION BENEFITS RISK CARE INTERNAL
STORES FACILITY RETROSPECTIVE LIABILITY MANAGEMENT INSURANCE SERVICE

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Equity in pooled cash and investments 391,556$              159,229$              78,738$                247,767$              -$                          86,083$                963,373$              
Receivables (net of allowances 

for uncollectibles) 353                       -                            27,058                  1,027                    -                            -                            28,438                  
Due from other funds 41,043                  -                            319,840                -                            -                            -                            360,883                
Inventory 214,223 - - - - - 214,223

Total current assets 647,175 159,229 425,636 248,794 - 86,083 1,566,917

Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress -                            352,110                -                            -                            -                            -                            352,110                
Depreciable capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation - 4,181,781 - - - - 4,181,781
Total capital assets - 4,533,891 - - - - 4,533,891

Total assets 647,175 4,693,120 425,636 248,794 - 86,083 6,100,808

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension 16,789 175,727 - - - - 192,516

Total deferred outflows of resources 16,789 175,727 - - - - 192,516

LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 41,176                  10,509                  -                            -                            -                            -                            51,685                  
Salaries and benefits payable 1,201                    11,621                  -                            -                            -                            -                            12,822                  
Due to other funds 415                       2,498                    -                            -                            -                            -                            2,913                    
Insurance claims payable-current - - 346,571 - - - 346,571

Total current liabilities 42,792 24,628 346,571 - - - 413,991

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 3,073                    113,987                -                            -                            -                            -                            117,060                
Net pension liability 43,297 453,171 - - - - 496,468

Total noncurrent liabilities 46,370 567,158 - - - - 613,528
Total liabilities 89,162 591,786 346,571 - - - 1,027,519

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension 995 10,409 - - - - 11,404

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets -                            4,533,891             -                            -                            -                            -                            4,533,891             
Unrestricted 573,807 (267,239) 79,065 248,794 - 86,083 720,510

Total net position 573,807$  4,266,652$  79,065$  248,794$  -$  86,083$  5,254,401$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO C-2
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CITY WORKERS' ACCRUED HEALTH TOTAL
CENTRAL SERVICE COMPENSATION BENEFITS RISK CARE INTERNAL
STORES FACILITY RETROSPECTIVE LIABILITY MANAGEMENT INSURANCE SERVICE

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 1,461,993$            587,739$              397,893$              -$                          -$                          7,117,163$            9,564,788$            
Other 8,166 3,199 445,232 - - 8,676 465,273

Total operating revenues 1,470,159 590,938 843,125 - - 7,125,839 10,030,061

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services 39,510                  471,581                -                            -                            -                            -                            511,091                
Contractual services 157,370                141,089                888,444                -                            100,000                -                            1,286,903             
Materials and supplies 1,293,645             14,315                  -                            -                            -                            -                            1,307,960             
Claims expense -                            -                            (45,319)                 -                            -                            7,121,645             7,076,326             
Depreciation - 294,785 - - - - 294,785

Total operating expenses 1,490,525 921,770 843,125 - 100,000 7,121,645 10,477,065

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (20,366)                 (330,832)               -                            -                            (100,000)               4,194                    (447,004)               

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Investment earnings - - 1,218 (1,206) - - 12

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (20,366)                 (330,832)               1,218                    (1,206)                   (100,000)               4,194                    (446,992)               

Transfers in - - - 250,000 - - 250,000

CHANGE IN NET POSITION (20,366)                 (330,832)               1,218                    248,794                (100,000)               4,194                    (196,992)               

NET POSITION - BEGINNING 594,173 4,597,484 77,847 - 100,000 81,889 5,451,393

NET POSITION - ENDING 573,807$  4,266,652$  79,065$  248,794$  -$  86,083$  5,254,401$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO C-3
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CITY WORKERS' ACCRUED HEALTH TOTAL
CENTRAL SERVICE COMPENSATION BENEFITS RISK CARE INTERNAL
STORES FACILITY RETROSPECTIVE LIABILITY MANAGEMENT INSURANCE SERVICE

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from interfund services provided 1,464,897$            587,780$               1,264,655$            -$                           -$                           7,125,839$            10,443,171$
Payments to suppliers (1,443,318)             (159,318)                (846,082)                (1,027)                    (100,000)                -                             (2,549,745)
Payments to employees (29,995)                  (373,368)                -                             -                             (403,363)
Payments for claims - - (418,649) - - (7,121,645) (7,540,294)

Net cash flows from operating activities (8,416) 55,094 (76) (1,027) (100,000) 4,194 (50,231)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interfund transactions - - - 250,000 - - 250,000

Net cash flows from noncapital financing
activities - - - 250,000 - - 250,000

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends received - - 1,218 (1,206) - - 12

Net cash flow from investing activities - - 1,218 (1,206) - - 12

Change in cash and cash equivalents (8,416)                    55,094                   1,142                     247,767                 (100,000)                4,194                     199,781
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 399,972 104,135 77,596 - 100,000 81,889 763,592

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 391,556$  159,229$  78,738$  247,767$  -$  86,083$  963,373$

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash flows from operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (20,366)$                (330,832)$              -$                           -$                           (100,000)$              4,194$                   (447,004)$
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

from operating activities:
Depreciation -                             294,785                 -                             -                             -                             -                             294,785
Change in assets, liabilities, and deferred
  outflows/inflows of resources:

Accounts receivable 117                        -                             10,621                   (1,027)                    -                             -                             9,711
Due from other funds (5,127)                    -                             410,909                 -                             -                             -                             405,782
Inventory 11,616                   -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             11,616
Deferred outflows-pension (4,863)                    (48,324)                  -                             -                             -                             -                             (53,187)
Accounts payable (3,919)                    (3,914)                    (2,957)                    -                             -                             -                             (10,790)
Insurance claims payable -                             -                             (418,649)                -                             -                             -                             (418,649)
Salary and benefits payable 91                          286                        -                             -                             -                             -                             377
Due to other funds (252)                       (3,158)                    -                             -                             -                             -                             (3,410)
Compensated absences 816                        10,821                   -                             -                             -                             -                             11,637
Net pension liability 13,199                   132,728 - - - - 145,927
Deferred inflows-pension 272 2,702 - - - - 2,974

Net cash flows from operating activities (8,416)$  55,094$  (76)$  (1,027)$  (100,000)$  4,194$  (50,231)$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

PENSION LIABILITY

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 765,575$  9,272,216$  9,301,783$  736,008$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 706,031$         10,504,594$    10,183,359$    1,027,266$      
Restricted deposits 59,544 - 350,802 (291,258)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 765,575$  10,504,594$  10,534,161$  736,008$

MUNICIPAL COURT RESTITUTIONS

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 10,344$  51,958$  60,590$  1,712$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 7,583$             59,541$           65,982$           1,142$             
Restricted deposits 2,761 - 2,191 570
TOTAL LIABILITIES 10,344$  59,541$  68,173$  1,712$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments -$                     400,325$         400,324$         1$                    
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 542,943           546,051           542,943           546,051           
Due from other governments 45,290 45,593 45,290 45,593
TOTAL ASSETS 588,233$  991,969$  988,557$  591,645$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 12,942$           406,636$         406,688$         12,890$           
Restricted deposits 575,291 604,587 601,123 578,755
TOTAL LIABILITIES 588,233$  1,011,223$  1,007,811$  591,645$

MISCELLANEOUS DEPOSITS

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 291,407$  1,484,127$  1,233,637$  541,897$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 8,249$             186,412$         169,230$         25,431$           
Restricted deposits 283,158 233,308 - 516,466
TOTAL LIABILITIES 291,407$  419,720$  169,230$  541,897$

STATE FEES

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 1,083$  6,350$  6,886$  547$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 965$                7,316$             7,852$             429$                
Restricted deposits 118 - - 118
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,083$  7,316$  7,852$  547$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

JEDD INCOME TAX

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments -$                     745,165$         745,165$         -$                     
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 40,193 100,487 92,863 47,817
TOTAL ASSETS 40,193$  845,652$  838,028$  47,817$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                     190,141$         190,141$         -$                     
Restricted deposits 40,193 7,624 - 47,817
TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,193$  197,765$  190,141$  47,817$

JEDD ROAD CONSTRUCTION

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 225,831$  5,349$  231,180$  -$

LIABILITIES:
Restricted deposits 225,831$  -$  225,831$  -$

JEDD ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 5,000$  -$  -$  5,000$

LIABILITIES:
Restricted deposits 5,000$  -$  -$  5,000$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

SPRINGFIELD PORT AUTHORITY

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 2,931$             61$                  27$                  2,965$             
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 10 12 10 12
TOTAL ASSETS 2,941$  73$  37$  2,977$

LIABILITIES:
Restricted deposits 2,941$  36$  -$  2,977$

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - GENERAL FUND

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 239,214$         1,025,594$      927,189$         337,619$         
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 1,029 4,140 3,336 1,833
TOTAL ASSETS 240,243$  1,029,734$  930,525$  339,452$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 13,986$           824,435$         821,813$         16,608$           
Accrued liabilities 171,146           183,754           171,146           183,754           
Restricted deposits 55,201 83,889 - 139,090
TOTAL LIABILITIES 240,333$  1,092,078$  992,959$  339,452$

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - DOG PARK

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 5,800$  -$  -$  5,800$

LIABILITIES:
Restricted deposits 5,800$  -$  -$  5,800$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - SPONSORSHIP

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 67,446$  103,677$  76,430$  94,693$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 483$                62,002$           62,250$           235$                
Accrued liabilities 124                  124                  124                  124                  
Restricted deposits 66,839 27,495 - 94,334
TOTAL LIABILITIES 67,446$  89,621$  62,374$  94,693$

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - FIREWORKS DONATIONS

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 2,756$  23,680$  24,299$  2,137$

LIABILITIES:
Restricted deposits 2,756$  -$  619$  2,137$

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - TOURNAMENT INCENTIVE

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 2,500$  -$  -$  2,500$

LIABILITIES:
Restricted deposits 2,500$  -$  -$  2,500$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - COUNTYWIDE LEVY

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 137,073$         1,275,869$      1,310,034$      102,908$         
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 444 427 444 427
TOTAL ASSETS 137,517$  1,276,296$  1,310,478$  103,335$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 43,838$           1,269,660$      1,268,799$      44,699$           
Accrued liabilities 164,771           153,153           164,771           153,153           
Restricted deposits (71,092) 80,967 104,392 (94,517)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 137,517$  1,503,780$  1,537,962$  103,335$

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - CAPITAL

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 8,417$             267,390$         231,307$         44,500$           
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 27 185 28 184
TOTAL ASSETS 8,444$  267,575$  231,335$  44,684$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable -$                     672$                672$                -$                     
Restricted deposits 8,444 36,240 - 44,684
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,444$  36,912$  672$  44,684$

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - GOLF

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 78,824$           22,342$           56,803$           44,363$           
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 255 184 255 184
TOTAL ASSETS 79,079$  22,526$  57,058$  44,547$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 48,292$           41,765$           90,007$           50$                  
Accrued liabilities 7,101               -                       7,101               -                       
Restricted deposits 23,686 20,811 - 44,497
TOTAL LIABILITIES 79,079$  62,576$  97,108$  44,547$
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO D-1
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Additions Deletions 2017

NATIONAL TRAIL PARKS AND RECREATION DISTRICT - AQUATIC CENTER

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 19,003$           239,910$         255,356$         3,557$             
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 61 15 61 15
TOTAL ASSETS 19,064$  239,925$  255,417$  3,572$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 4,393$             250,062$         251,934$         2,521$             
Restricted deposits 14,671 2,350 15,970 1,051
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,064$  252,412$  267,904$  3,572$

TOTAL AGENCY

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and investments 1,863,204$      14,924,013$    14,861,010$    1,926,207$      
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) 584,962           651,501           639,940           596,523           
Due from other governments 45,290 45,593 45,290 45,593
TOTAL ASSETS 2,493,456$  15,621,107$  15,546,240$  2,568,323$

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 846,762$         13,803,236$    13,518,727$    1,131,271$      
Accrued liabilities 343,142           337,031           343,142           337,031           
Restricted deposits 1,303,642 1,097,307 1,300,928 1,100,021
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,493,546$  15,237,574$  15,162,797$  2,568,323$
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Contents Tables

Financial Trends 1 - 4

Revenue Capacity 5 - 6

Debt Capacity 7 - 11

Demographic and Economic Information 12 - 13

Operating Information 14 - 16

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the CAFR's for the 
relevant year.

reader understand how the information in the City's financials relates
to the services the City provides and the activities it performs.

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the City's
financial activities take place.

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
City's most significant local revenue sources.

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and
the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO
Statistical Section

This part of the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the City's overall financial health. These tables are presented in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section .

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the City's financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 3
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS,
FOR THE LAST SEVEN YEARS
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
General Fund
     Non-spendable 4$             3$             4$             4$             2$             1$             1$             
     Restricted 40             90             134           206           124           102           82             
     Committed 1,439        1,433        483           214           131           96             31             
     Assigned 241           190           1,722        1,491        563           1,063        1,109        
     Unassigned 5,988        4,916        2,954        2,666        2,392        1,701        6,484        

Total General Fund 7,712        6,632        5,297        4,581        3,212        2,963        7,707        

All Other Government Funds
     Non-spendable 914           857           796           824           796           780           784           
     Restricted 26,963      26,696      26,343      25,230      26,667      28,663      29,379      
     Committed 2,156        2,257        2,319        2,195        2,049        1,954        2,017        
     Unassigned (3,093)       (589)          (1,320)       (854)          (2,017)       (952)          (1,227)       

Total all other 
    governmental funds 26,940      29,221      28,138      27,395      27,495      30,445      30,953      

Total Fund Balances,
     Governmental Funds 34,652$    35,853$   33,435$   31,976$   30,707$    33,408$   38,660$   

Note: The City implemented GASB Statement No. 54 - Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental 
Fund Type Definitions  as of December 31, 2011.

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 5
INCOME TAX REVENUE NET OF REFUNDS,
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS
(cash basis)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

WITHHOLDING NET PROFIT
YEAR ACCOUNTS ACCOUNTS TOTAL

2008 25,084 5,634    30,718      

2009 22,980 4,465    27,445      

2010 22,609 4,242    26,851      

2011 22,482 4,638    27,120      

2012 23,707 5,076    28,783      

2013 24,043 5,406    29,449      

2014 24,830 5,659    30,489      

2015 25,257 6,060    31,317      

2016 25,961 5,435    31,396      

2017 29,187 5,683    34,870      

Source:  City of Springfield Finance Department 

The income tax rate was 2.0% from 1988 through June 30, 2017. Effective July 1, 2017, the income tax rate
increased to 2.4%.

Net Profit Accounts include both Residential and Business accounts.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 6
RANKING OF TOP TEN INCOME TAX WITHHOLDERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

EMPLOYER 2008

Community Mercy Health Partners (1) 1            1            
American Security Group (2) 3            2            
Springfield City School District 4            3            
Clark County, Ohio 2            4            
City of Springfield 5            5            
Gordon Food Service Inc. 7            6            
Wittenberg University 6            7            
Kone Cranes Inc. -            8            
Mercy Health Phys Cincinnati -            9            
International Truck and Engine -            10          
Honda of America Inc. 8            -            
Moyno Inc 9            -            
State of Ohio 10          -            

Combined Percentage of Total Withholding Taxes 28.2%  28.0%

    Source: City of Springfield Finance Department

Due to legal restrictions and confidentiality requirements, the City cannot disclose the amount of 
withholdings by taxpayers.

(1) Springfield Regional Medical Center later became known as Community Mercy Health Partners.

(2) DBA Assurant Specialty Property

2017
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 8
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT,
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS 
(amounts expressed in thousands)

RATIO OF
GENERAL NET BONDED

OBLIGATION DEBT PER
Year BONDS POPULATION CAPITA

2008 30,355$     62 489.60$     

2009 43,035       62 694.11       

2010 38,835       61 636.64       

2011 35,304       60 588.40       

2012 31,895       60 531.58       

2013 28,708       60 478.47       

2014 25,435       60 423.92       

2015 23,535       60 392.25       

2016 21,390       60 356.50       

2017 19,167       60 319.45       

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the 
Basic Financial Statements.

Debt is not paid from property taxes.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO      TABLE 9
PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS 
(amounts expressed in thousands)

 LESS: NET
PLEDGED APPLICABLE AVAILABLE COVERAGE

YEAR REVENUES EXPENSES REVENUE PRINCIPAL INTEREST RATIO

2008 11,725        8,120            3,605   1,296 330    2.22

2009 11,933        8,330            3,603   1,239 269    2.39

2010 10,813        9,162            1,651   1,297 212    1.09

2011 10,717        8,207            2,510   1,355 153    1.66

2012 10,344        7,915            2,429   420     103    4.64

2013 10,541        8,186            2,355   436     86      4.51

2014 11,227        8,714            2,513   453     69      4.81

2015 11,697        11,142          555      2,544 1,480 0.14

2016 4,382          2,576            1,806   2,484 1,413 0.46

2017 4,981          2,435            2,546   2,664 1,388 0.63

Note: Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

DEBT SERVICE

Under the Water Pollution Control Loan Fund, the City has pledged it's: "Wastewater Service Charges, Stormwater Charges, and other
revenues derived by the Borrower from the ownership and operation of its wastewater system (including, without limitation, any Special
Assessment Funds), net of the costs of operating and maintaining the system and paying all amounts required to be paid under any
Mortgage, Indenture of Mortgage, Trust Agreement or other instrument heretofore or hereafter entered into by the Borrower to secure debt
obligations heretofore or hereafter issued or incurred by the Borrower for the system."
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 10
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017
(amounts expressed in thousands)

PERCENTAGE AMOUNT
NET DEBT APPLICABLE TO APPLICABLE TO

JURISDICTION OUTSTANDING CITY OF SPRINGFIELD CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

Clark County, Ohio $ 15,880 33.06% $ 5,250    

Springfield City School District 17,224 99.39% 17,119

Northeastern Local School District 390      17.35% 68         

Northwestern Local School District 22,320 0.32% 71         

Clark-Shawnee Local School District 35,199 30.20% 10,630

Springfield Township 1,497 6.55% 98         

German Township 25        0.47% -            

Subtotal overlapping debt $ 33,236

City of Springfield 2,379 100.00% 2,379    

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT $ 35,615

Source:  Ohio Municipal Advisory Council

The percentage of applicable debt to the City relates to that entities assessed value located within the City.
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO             TABLE 12
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS,
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

Total Per Capita
Personal Personal Unemployment Land

Year Count (1) Income (4) Income Rates (2) Area (3)

2008 62,417 1,413,044,050$  22,639$ 7.2      25.38
2009 62,269 1,135,131,514    18,229   10.8    25.38
2010 60,573 1,089,004,544    17,978   10.2    25.39
2011 60,313 1,263,706,413    20,952 8.2      25.39
2012 60,169 1,297,648,541    21,567 6.6      25.39
2013 60,002 1,232,106,100    20,534 6.2      25.39
2014 59,897 1,116,060,801    18,633 4.8      25.39
2015 59,618 1,114,796,982    18,699 5.1      25.54
2016 59,087 1,138,665,577    19,271 5.4      25.76
2017 59,087 1,158,577,896    19,608 4.8      26.08

Assessed Public
Property School Median

Year Value (5) Enrollment (6) Age (1)

2008 958,253 7,811     35.10
2009 909,431 7,837     35.10
2010 881,999 7,286     36.20
2011 846,461 7,398     37.30
2012 833,636 7,213     37.00
2013 820,102 7,245     35.80
2014 769,838 7,362     36.20
2015 763,120 7,580     35.90
2016 762,475 7,772     36.90
2017 778,112 7,719     36.70

Sources: (1) U.S. Census Bureau, Population Division, factfinder.census.gov. Annual Estimates of the
Resident Population: April 1, 2010 to July 1, 2016. 2017 estimates were not available.

(2) Ohio Department of Job and Family Services, Ohio Labor Market Information, www.ohiolmi.com.
This represents the ratio of estimated total unemployment to the total labor force for the City of
Springfield.

(3) City of Springfield Engineering Department, presented in square miles
(4) U.S Census Bureau, census.gov/quickfacts/.
(5) Clark County Auditor, amounts expressed in thousands
(6) Ohio Department of Education 2016-2017 Report Card, www.ode.state.oh.us, and the

Springfield City Board of Education

Population
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 13
RANKING OF TOP TEN EMPLOYERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

EMPLOYER 2008

Community Mercy Health Partners (1) 1                1                
American Security Group (2) 2                2                
Springfield City School District 5                3                
Clark County, Ohio 3                4                
Dole Fresh Vegetables -- 5                
City of Springfield 7                6                
Clark State Community College -- 7                
Kroger (5 stores) 6                8                
Wittenberg University 10              9                
Wal-Mart (2 stores) 4                10              
Tac Industries 8                --
Gordon Food Service, LLC 9                --

Source: Greater Springfield Chamber of Commerce (number of employees by employer unavailable)

(1) Springfield Regional Medical Center later became known as Community Mercy Health Partners.

    (2) DBA Assurant Specialty Property

2017
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO TABLE 15
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM,
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

General government:
    Positions filled (1) 42         16         31         35         27         52         32         59         43         73         
    Payroll checks / direct deposits processed (1) 19,849   19,756   18,867   18,785   18,543   18,610   18,021   18,488   18,043   17,179   
    Accounts payable checks processed (1) 10,729   9,949    9,841    9,378    9,594    9,328    9,169    9,007    9,069    8,256    
    Purchase orders processed (1) 2,123    1,990    2,034    1,781    1,679    1,683    1,652    1,677    1,600    1,530    
    Income tax returns filed (1) 30,168   29,564   27,880   23,440   25,755   25,694   27,040   25,428   24,680   22,009   
    Municipal court cases filed (2) 29,138   25,388   23,563   22,499   24,006   21,528   23,417   24,604   25,250   26,250   
    New ordinances and resolutions (3) 439       389       415       401       403       378       384       394       410       341       
    Building permits issued (4) 1,993    1,991    1,808    1,579    1,645    1,568    1,423    1,494    1,564    1,756    
    Inspections performed (4) 3,532    2,781    1,806    2,407    2,483    2,042    2,511    2,500    1,608   2,644   

Public safety (5):
    Number of arrests 5,636    5,395    4,465    4,085    4,072    3,781    3,848    3,479    2,639    2,350    
    Number of police calls 70,636   64,460   64,576   64,791   61,589   61,238   59,498   57,838   62,115   59,815   
    Number of fire calls 14,182   13,841   14,620   15,944   16,560   16,216   16,832   16,603   14,905   18,229   

Recreation (6):
    Number of trees planted 362       73         169       124       180       158       189       130       120       134       
    Number of trees pruned 82         63         42         334       200       152       213       273       355       378       
    Number of trees removed 108       65         35         59         47         186       288       238       213       233       

Community development (7):
    Neighborhood associations active 26         20         18         18         18         18         18         18         16         15         
    Neighborhood associations inactive 8           10         11         11         11         11         16         16         18         19         
    Mediation services requests 158       145       190       154       155       151       146       148      150      147       
    Resolved through mediation, 
        conciliation, or facilitation 89         74         91         83         86         11         74         74         78         69         
    Lead safe applications 224       125       150       134       94         42         69         34         23         -            
    Lead safe jobs completed 70         101       144       130       82         35         39         39         35         -            

Public works / utility services (6):
    Number of water consumers 22,128   21,986   21,874   21,805   23,722   23,692   23,683   23,620   21,973   21,539   
    Number of sewer consumers 21,728   21,569   21,455   21,392   23,096   23,076   23,062   23,218   21,181   20,795   
    Number of stormwater only consumers -            -            -            -            -            5,070    6,660    6,427    6,346    6,379    
    Average daily pumpage (mgd) 12         12         13         13         13         11         11         10         9           9           

Highway and street (6):
    Tons of snow melting salt used 5,368    2,642    4,932    2,013    3,519    3,632    3,783    3,277    3,023    2,361    
    Signalized inspections performed 134       133       132       126       126       118       132       124      134      130       

Sources: (1) City of Springfield Finance Department
(2) City of Springfield Clerk of Courts
(3) City of Springfield Clerk of Commission
(4) City of Springfield Community Development Department
(5) City of Springfield Public Safety Department
(6) City of Springfield Service Department
(7) City of Springfield Human Relations, Housing, and Neighborhood Services
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CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OHIO               TABLE 16
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM,
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
General government:
    City Hall square footage 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335 60,335
    Vehicles 28        26        24        22        23        23        25        23        20        19        

Public safety:
    Police stations 1          1          1          1          1          1          1          1          1          1          
    Police vehicles 60        65        70        72        75        79        75        83        81        81        
    Fire stations 7          7          7          7          7          7          7          7          7          7          
    Fire trucks 12        13        12        12        12        11        12        12        12        12        
    Medic units 10        9          9          9          9          9          10        9          9          9          
    Other vehicles 19        21        21        21        23        22        21        21        21        17        

Recreation:
    Vehicles 8          7          7          8          7          9          7          8          8          15        

Community development:
    Vehicles 3          5          6          9          9          10        11        11        9          10        

Public works / utility services:
    Vehicles 72        71        80        88        88        94        71        71        88        84        
    Miles of water mains 332      332      332      332      334      334      334      336      336      340      
    Miles of sanitary sewers 233      232      232      232      316      322      325      318      326      327      
    Miles of storm sewers 110      108      109      109      113      113      116      119      122      123      

Highway and street:
    Vehicles 39        44        36        42        42        42        35        37        36        39        
    Miles of streets 295      295      295      279      279      279      279      285      285      284      
    Number of street lights 7,382   7,382   7,377   7,605   7,605   7,621   7,621   7,633   7,633   7,633   
    Buses and demand
           response vehicle 21        21        21        24        24        23        23        23        23        22        

Source: City of Springfield Finance Department
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